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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PERFORMANCE

Our Group's turnover decreased from approximately HK$766.0
million in 2018 to approximately HK$650.4 million in 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately 15.1%. Gross profit
was approximately HK$148.4 million in 2019, representing a
decrease of approximately 17.0% from that of 2018. Profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$55.9 million in 2019, representing a decrease
of approximately 4.3% from that of 2018. Decrease in net profit
was primarily due to the instability of global economy, resulting
in a decrease in sales orders and a reduction in the sales price.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

If each electronic product represents a life form, the “electric
current” serves as the blood throughout electronic life forms. To
function properly, electronic life forms require the normal flow
of electricity, which is to a greater extent the key to survival. In
that sense, a printed circuit board (“PCB") represents the
“lifeline” that transports the “blood”, which is why many
consider PCBs as the “mother of electronics”.

Owing to opportunities arising from the eastward movement of
the global electronics industry, the Group has been engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of PCBs for 30 years, and witnessed
industrial transformations at various stages. Over the course of
the market growth, our business experienced fluctuations at an
accelerating or decelerating pace from time to time. Despite
that, the Group’s business operation has in general grown to a
certain scale today.

Nonetheless, the PCB industry continues to face various
uncertainties in the future. The novel coronavirus disease (the
“COVID-19") outbreak in early 2020 has spread across the
world, exerting a great impact on the economy and people’s
livelihood. As the epidemic prolongs and spreads to a greater
extent, a greater negative impact on various aspects will ensue.
The economic development across the globe is adversely affected
by various factors, including President Trump’s America First
policy and his crackdown on Chinese electronics enterprises, the
Brexit plan and multiple geopolitical tensions.

4 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Despite a stabilized price of PCB raw materials in 2019, the
supply chain and logistics were not smooth in early 2020 due to
the COVID-19 epidemic, as a result of which, the price of
precious metals rose. It is expected that there is an upward trend
in the price of raw materials in 2020. Simultaneously coupled
with fierce competition among peers, as well as irrational pricing
competition, the product price became even lower, further
weakening the profitability of the enterprises.

Despite various unstable factors lurking around in this real and
tremendous PCB market, the PCBs continue to enjoy extensive
applications, which cover 3C products, Internet-of-Things, self-
driving vehicles, big data, automotive electronization and
electrification, and more. The development of every application
will drive the demand for PCBs. In particular, the application of
5G technology and the development of electrical vehicles will
require a massive supply of PCBs, ushering in a wonderful
business opportunity.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our
staff for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our
Group's development. | would also like to thank all of our
shareholders, for their trust and continuous support over a
challenging but rewarding 2019.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Chan Wing Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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Financial Highlights
MBREE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2019 2018 Change
—E-hEF —T—)\F #E)
Results HK$'000 HK$'000 (%)
E45 FET FHET
Revenue WS 650,408 766,006 (15.1)
Profit before tax 4 B Bz ) 68,056 81,550 (16.5)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity AARIERERFEAA
holders of the Company FEfRRF 55,901 58,393 (4.3)
Basic earnings per share BRERZF SRR G HK24.3 cents
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AERBLAIR) Al Bl 4.1)
Diluted earnings per share FBREERT G CEFERENIEN  HK24.3 cents
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AZFBSBLZIR) Al il 4.1
Dividend per share BRRS Nil HK6.0 cents
(expressed in HK cents per share) (A FREWZITR) i1 (]| (100.0)
As at 31 December
BR+=A=+—8H
2019 2018 Change
—=kE —TN\F 25
Financial Position HK$'000 HK$'000 (%)
B AR R FET FET
Total assets EERE 847,150 939,135 (9.8)
Net debts (excluding cash and bank FEB(TREReR
balances, pledged deposits and RITHEH - 2EIF
restricted cash) GFREZEHIRS) (76,631) 12,041 (736.4)
Shareholders’ equity 3 534,852 511,653 4.5
Net assets per share BREEFE
(expressed in HK$ per share) (LA TTHR) 2.23 2.13 47
Net debts to total assets FEGRHEERE (9.0)% 1.3% (792.3)
Net debts to shareholders’ equity FETEERRERS (14.3)% 2.4% (695.8)
6 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Financial Summary

M=

in HK$'000

FET

RESULTS ES
Revenue Wz

Profit before tax R BT
Income tax expense FrSfiA X
Profit for the year FREF

in HK$'000

FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BELE
Total liabilities BEBE
Net assets BESE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—-HLHEE

2018 2017 2016 2015
—T-NEF —EB—+F E—RF —E—AF
650,408 766,006 633,572 591,407 638,930
68,056 81,550 29,246 30,413 49,724
(12,155) (23,157) (4,971) (7,030) (7,311)
55,901 58,393 24,275 23,383 42,413
As at 31 December
R+=-—H=+-—H
2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-N\F ZE—+F ZT—RF ZZ—HF
847,150 939,135 888,256 829,988 863,581
312,298 427,482 407,836 408,159 434,797
534,852 511,653 480,420 421,829 428,784
BELEZRARA T 7
E£3{ 2019




Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWmR DN

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The printed circuit board, also known as “PCB”, is mainly
comprised of insulation base materials and conductors. PCBs,
which support and connect electronic devices as they provide
connection between electric components, are components
required to combine a majority of electronic devices with
electronics, machines, and chemical materials. They are also
given the name of “the mother of electronic products”.

In 2019, global economy registered minor growth. According to
the International Monetary Fund, global economic growth was
estimated to increase by 2.9% in 2019, and is forecast to
increase by 3.3% and 3.4% in 2020 and 2021, respectively. In
the next few years, the global PCB market will maintain
moderate growth as sectors including the automobile electronics,
Internet-of-Things, cloud server and storage equipment will
become the growth engine driving the demand for PCBs.

According to the statistics, the output value of PCBs in the global
market amounted to US$62.4 billion in 2018, and the same will
maintain moderate growth at a compound growth rate of 3.7%
from 2018 to 2023. By 2023, the output value of PCBs in the
global market will amount to US$74.7 billion.

The PCB industry has been long established, with its early
presence mainly distributed in Europe, North America, and
Japan. Due to global migration of the electronics sector, Asia
takes the lead in the PCB industry development on the globe.
According to the information available, the output value of PCBs
in China is anticipated to reach US$32.7 billion in 2018,
accounting for approximately 52.4% of the global output value.
It is anticipated that the output value of PCBs in China will
amount to US$40.56 billion in 2023.

A PCB is a component necessary for electronic products. With
continuous technology advancements, the demand for PCBs is
steady and is expected to continue to grow. The range of
application of PCBs is extensive, including communication
devices, industrial controller, medical devices, security electronics,
national defense and aerospace. In recent years, driven by the
demands of emerging sectors such as new energy vehicles,
Internet-of-Things, energy conservation and environmental
protection, and information security, good business
opportunities will be brought to the PCB market.

Automobile electronics become a global trend, which promotes
the rapid growth of automobile PCBs. PCBs are widely used in
engine, control, safety, information and in-vehicle systems.
Compared with conventional vehicles, the requirement of
electronics for new energy vehicle is higher. In view of the
immense effort in promoting the development of new energy
vehicle by countries around the world, it shall create tremendous
business opportunities to the PCB market in the future.

8 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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BERBNWmR DN

The new applications of PCBs will further drive the development
of the PCB industry. The 5G deployment will significantly
advance the progress of the PCB industry, resulting in a soaring
number of PCBs used in unit devices and base stations amid a
growing demand for a total number of devices and base
stations. It is expected that prospect will emerge in the PCB
market.

Although the PCB market has an encouraging prospect, it also
faces numerous difficulties. As the PRC government has
strengthened its efforts on environmental protection,
manufacturing enterprises that fail to meet the requirements will
be subject to rectification, or even replacement or suspension.
As a result, compliant PCB manufacturers are required to
increase investments in environmental engineering and
wastewater treatment capacities, which undoubtedly adds
weight on their operating costs.

The novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) outbreak in early
2020, which has spread across China with worldwide infection,
has caused material impact on a wide range of economic
activities. The operation of PCB manufacturers is unavoidably
affected, and the seriousness of the negative impact will depend
on the development of the epidemic.

Against the capacity expansion launched by many PCB
manufacturers amid a growing number of new PCB
manufacturers in recent years, as well as the failure of
production and technology capacities to meet market demands,
the market has eventually become aggressive, with the possibility
of triggering a fierce pricing competition. With the unit price
being adjusted downwards, the slim profit margin will further
shrink.

The labor costs in China have been on the rise over the past
decade, as corporate expenditure rises due to full
implementation of policies on social security and public housing
fund. A phenomenon of “recruitment difficulty, labor shortage”
often appears in the developed coastal areas, in which case,
recruitment of frontline employees, particularly seasoned
technicians, becomes increasingly difficult. As a result, many
domestic PCB enterprises gradually relocate their production
bases to inland provinces and cities, or comprehensive reform to
accelerate the process of production automation and
intellectualization to reduce the dependence on manpower and
ensure the stability of quality.

PCBHEA ERETHBPCBITREE - SGREM AN
EIPCBERATA - Kim A ST RKAEIRM - 55K

B4 - 204 B PCBRKF - TABIPCBMB I A
—ER% -

AIEEMPCBMIEEETENAS  BRELEH D
RREE - BEERBEBFERRERDEMNSE - KREEZEH
AECESHEUNENR  FEZHREREE At
BTENEE  EREIEMEKEERBRNENRE
Fri2Ft - Mm5FhNE PCBALEPIHB LN o

:%:%iﬂ&%ﬁ@%%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%%
(COVID-19) * BEEH R L ZIBENBREFELZR
BEHENEERS - KB%LW?E*&% BHZE
BEZK ST EBENEE-

BEEIMET D PCBRERRE - %LMBﬁiﬁ$%

@ mAERMEE N ARZER RIS FEREES -
SHHEREE ARSI BHUNERRT B
IR T - EFNEEBERE -

B A 85 Q&KEL£+¢T%tH 2EE L

SREMNAESBERE NG ENKAR - /88 E
Wz(«%ﬁﬁfi HEI?E }EHI)\LJ E’]IE% %Hﬁ %?K%I
(FRIREABRYRME) ERWNE  AutEATD
PCB@%H%EFﬁiﬂJLEﬁL&Wim’éﬁiiﬁﬂﬂzi '

MRIMADEETEEBSE - BeEL RPADH
K XARERENREN -
BREEEERERAA 9
FE# 2019



Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWmR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group is an original equipment manufacturer (“OEM")
provider of PCBs and focused on the production of quality PCBs,
which meet industrial standards such as IPC Standards, as well as
the customers’ requirement.

We focused on the conventional PCBs with a well-developed
capacity to produce multi-layered and special material PCBs with
primary applications in cars, communication equipment, medical
devices, industrial automation equipment and consumer
electronics.

Our continuous diversification of product mix and market
coverage allows the Group to swiftly cater for the changes in
demand from certain sectors and adjust our production output
accordingly, resulting in reduced reliance on a single product and
market. Benefited from the enormous business opportunities
generated from automobile electronics in recent years, the
proportion of this section is correspondingly higher.

Over the past 30 years of our operation, the Group has
established a solid foundation and close relationship with our
customers. The Group provided direct and indirect services to
OEM customers across Asia, Europe, Africa, North America,
South America and Oceania, who are engaged in various
industries with many of them running in a multinational model.
Certain of our major OEM customers are leading players in their
markets. The Group supplied PCB products directly to a number
of leading electronic manufacturing service providers, in order to
assemble finished goods of OEM for the Group’s indirect OEM
customers. To date, the Group has built up long-term
relationship with major customers, and some of them have been
working with us for over a decade. The Company believed that
these customers also considered the Group as their important
partner for their supply chain. Therefore, our profound and long-
term relationship with customers will enable the Group to know
the trend of customers’ demand more quickly.

The Group is of the view that product and process quality are
integral to its business. The Group complies with various
international quality standards and systems, including ISO9001,
ISO14001 and IATF16949 certifications. The Group has put in
place a number of quality measures and simplification plan to
promote a culture of quality product. Quality is of paramount
importance to the business of the Group and is regularly
reviewed and improved by dedicated personnel to enhance
customer satisfaction. In addition, the Group obtained AS9100
certification in 2009 to qualify for the provision of advanced and
reliable PCBs for the aerospace industry. This is a testament to
our product quality.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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The impact caused by the high production cost affected the
current year. Followed by the sweep of emission limits and
environmental protection measures across China, PCB
manufacturers are facing steep challenges. As a PCB
manufacturer, the Group needs to formulate appropriate
responses and increasing the capital input in respect of
environmental protection. Finally, part of the profits would be
set off; however, viewing from another perspective,
manufacturers failing to meet the required standards would be
eliminated or would greatly increase their costs for the
compliance with the required standards, whereas the Group has
realized the need for environmental protection and has made
relevant investment many years ago. Therefore, compared with
those failing to meet the standards, the Group is under less
pressure in such new setting in the PCB market and better
positioned to seize opportunities.

Although China remains to be the “World Factory”, labor costs
are no longer as low as those over a decade ago and have
gradually increased. In addition, the labor supply is insufficient in
the coastal areas. Driven by Industry 4.0, the Group has
enhanced its production automation, promoting the use and
flow of production information, optimizing and improving costs
and quality, and hence leading the Group to develop towards
intelligent production in the future.

In 2020, serious challenge will expose the Group to a lot of risks
and uncertainties. The Group has been concentrating on its PCB
business for over 30 years, in which the accumulated experience
and networks allow the Group to make further development in
the PCB market. With the rapid progress of the urbanization in
Shenzhen, the Shenzhen Pingshan District Government has also
made strategic planning for promoting its local development.
Given the increased labor costs in Shenhzen and the need to
maintain competitiveness and respond to the future change in
the planned use of the current production area of Yan Tat
Printed Circuits (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., after consultation with the
Board of the Company and the professional advisers, the Group
plans to establish another production base in the Greater Bay
Area to support the long-term development of the Group. Apart
from the headquarters in China and the research and
development department which will remain located in Pingshan
District, Shenzhen, the bulk production capacity of the Group
will be relocated gradually to the new production base. The
Group will also proactively explore the possible cooperation with
independent parties in relation to the urban renewal project
located at the current production area in Pingshan District. At
the same time, the Group will also consider opportunities to
maximize shareholders’ benefits from time to time.
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BEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% B
in HK$'000 2019 2018
FET —ZE—-hEF —E-N\F
Turnover e 650,408 766,006
Gross profit ESVY 148,390 178,889
Earnings before interest, taxes, B~ BIE - TE R AF

depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") (TEBITDAJ) 103,574 117,400
Net profit 4 ) 55,901 58,393

The Group's turnover for the year of 2019 was approximately
HK$650.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
15.1% compared to that of the last year, primarily due to the
instability of global economy, resulting in a decrease in sales
orders and a reduction in the sales price.

The Group’s gross profit for the year of 2019 was approximately
HK$148.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
17.0% compared to that of the last year. Gross profit margin
decreased by approximately 0.6% to 22.8% from 23.4%,
primarily due to decrease in sales and production in volume.

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year of 2019 were
approximately HK$97.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 9.8% compared to approximately HK$107.5
million for the last year, primarily due to the decrease in
commission, transportation cost, research and development
costs and salaries.

The Group’s EBITDA amounted to approximately HK$103.6
million for the year of 2019 as compared to approximately
HK$117.4 million for the last year.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$55.9 million for
the year of 2019 as compared to approximately HK$58.4 million
for the last year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains increased by approximately HK$4.6
million, or 25.1%, to approximately HK$22.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from approximately HK$18.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018, primarily due to
realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve upon deregistration
of a subsidiary.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
HK$6.1 million, or 24.3%, to approximately HK$19.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 from approximately HK$25.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was
primarily due to decrease in commission and transportation cost.

1 2 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by approximately
HK$4.4 million, or 5.3%, to approximately HK$78.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 from approximately HK$82.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was
primarily due to decrease in research and development costs and
salaries.

Other expenses

Other expenses for the year ended 31 December 2019 were
approximately HK$0.1 million, similar to the amount of
approximately HK$0.06 million for the last year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately HK$2.0 million, or
24.7%, to approximately HK$6.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 from approximately HK$8.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in the amount of bank loans interest resulting from
the decrease in the amount of bank borrowings during the
period.

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company

The Group recorded profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$55.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 compared to approximately HK$58.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a
decrease of approximately 4.3%. The decrease of profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
mainly due to the net effect of the decrease in gross profit of
approximately HK$30.5 million, the increase in other income and
gains of approximately HK$4.6 million mainly due to realisation
of exchange fluctuation reserve upon deregistration of a
subsidiary, the decrease in selling and distribution expenses of
approximately HK$6.1 million mainly due to the decrease in
commission and transportation cost, the decrease in general and
administrative expenses of approximately HK$4.4 million mainly
due to the decrease in research and development costs and
salaries, and the decrease in income tax expense of
approximately HK$11.0 million.

Property, plant and equipment

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$363.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$35.7 million from that of 31 December 2018.
This was mainly due to the net effect of (i) depreciation of
approximately HK$28.0 million with respect to the Group’s
property, plant and equipment in the current year, (ii) decrease
in exchange realignment of approximately HK$8.7 million, (iii)
total additions and transfer in during the year of approximately
HK$9.7 million, and (iv) total disposals and transfer out during
the year of approximately HK$8.6 million.
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Trade and bills receivables

There was a decrease in trade and bills receivables as at 31
December 2019 of approximately HK$39.3 million as compared
to that of 31 December 2018, which was mainly due to the
decrease in revenue. For further details, please refer to note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

Trade and bills payables

There was a decrease in trade and bills payables as at 31
December 2019 of approximately HK$15.5 million as compared
to that of 31 December 2018, which was mainly due to the
decrease of trade payables caused by the drop in sales as well as
purchases. For further details, please refer to note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Bank and other borrowings

The Group had bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2019 in the sum of approximately HK$84.2 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$95.3 million from the sum of
approximately HK$179.5 million as at 31 December 2018. The
decrease in borrowings was mainly due to repayment of
borrowings. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging
instruments. For further details, please refer to note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Assets/liabilities classified as held for sale

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has been undergoing
negotiations with an independent third party on the possible
disposal of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Such
possible disposal was part of a framework agreement in relation
to the urban renewal project located at the production area of
the Group. For further details, please refer to note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$437.5 million (2018: HK$493.3 million)
including cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits and
restricted cash totalling approximately HK$160.9 million (2018:
HK$167.5 million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
non-current liabilities of approximately HK$35.7 million (2018:
HK$31.0 million), and its current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$276.6 million (2018: HK$396.5 million),
consisting mainly of payables arising in the normal course of
operations and bank borrowings for financing of production
facilities. Accordingly, the Group's current ratio, being the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was around 1.6 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: 1.2).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings
over total equity, was approximately 0.2 as at 31 December
2019 (2018: approximately 0.4).

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2019. The Group
strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

Foreign exchange exposure

As at 31 December 2019, we had cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings
which are denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong
dollar, and consequently we have foreign exchange exposure
from translation of amounts denominated in foreign currencies
as at the reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and
did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

Capital structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the
Company during the current and last years. The capital of the
Company is comprised of ordinary shares and capital reserves.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2019, capital commitments of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$2.1 million (2018: HK$1.6
million).

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: a final dividend of
HK6.0 cents per share).
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Dividend Policy

The Board regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder returns
when its dividend policy considers:

o the Group's actual and expected financial performance;
o retained profits and distributable reserves of the Group;

o return on equity and other corresponding restrictions of
the Group;

o the Group's capital requirement and surplus;
o the Group'’s liquidity position;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of
the Company; and

. other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will continue to review the Group's dividend policy
from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under
the applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

Information on employees

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 977 employees (2018:
986 employees), including the executive Directors. Total
employee benefit expense (including Directors’ remuneration)
was approximately HK$103.1 million, as compared to
approximately HK$117.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. Remuneration is determined with reference to market
norms and individual employee’s performance, qualification and
experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to
the Group's performance as well as the individual’s performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme in Hong Kong, and various welfare plans including
the provision of pension funds, medical insurance and other
relevant insurance for employees of our Group.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.
The Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 18 November 2014 (“Share Option Scheme”)
where options to subscribe for shares may be granted to the
Directors and employees of the Group.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 44 to 46 of this
annual report.

The Company did not grant any share option under the Share
Option Scheme during the current and prior years. Details of
remuneration of Directors and chief executive and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant investments held
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not hold any significant
investment.

Future plans for material investments and capital
assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has been
exploring the opportunity and discussing with independent third
parties in relation to: (i) proactively discussing the investment of
the establishment of a Greater Bay Area production base for the
production and manufacturing of PCBs; (ii) in relation to the
possible cooperation for the urban renewal project located at the
production area of Yan Tat Printed Circuits (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
in Pingshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC. For details, please refer
to the Company’s announcements dated 23 October 2019 and
13 November 2019.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2019, certain assets of the Group as set out
below were charged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group:

(i) the Group’s investment property amounting to
approximately HK$6.5 million (2018: HK$6.4 million).

(i)  pledged deposits with banks amounting to approximately
HK$31.4 million (2018: HK$31.1 million).

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 (2018: nil).

Events after reporting period

Except the impact from the COVID-19 epidemic as set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, there were no
other significant events from the end of the reporting period up
to the date of this annual report.
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BEENSREEEGERE

DIRECTORS BEx

Our Board is responsible and has general powers for the EZ2B8FEBKNERNKEE  WtILER T X BE
management and conduct of the business. The following table 7 - FTREFINARE AREBAEZ X ENER

sets forth information regarding members of the Board as at the
date of this report:

Name Appointment Date Resignation Date Age
®E ZEBEH BT Fie
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Chan Wing Yin 8 July 2014 - 70
PRECE 4 —ZT—WE+ANAR

Mrs. Chan Yung 8 July 2014 - 70
BRE X+ —E-mE+XANR

Mr. Chan Yan Wing 8 July 2014 - 40
BRESK A —ET-HFELANA

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong 1 November 2017 - 41
BREN A —E—+tH+—HF—H

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIEHITES

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming 18 November 2014 - 72
BERAASLE —E-mE+—At+ AR

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu 18 November 2014 - 52
ERERIR ST A —T-mE+—A+N\R

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 30 September 2016 - 69
2Bk w4 —E-RFALA=TH

CHAIRMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CHIEF FE HITESERITHAR

EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (FR& &), aged 70, is our chairman, BREBRLE 705 ATE  PITESRITHER -
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is the founder HAKREEAIRA - B— AN _F— ARERELASE
of the Group and has participated in the management of the BEMEIE - RAELEARNEBEHMBENBELFNESE - R
Group since January 1992. Mr. Chan is the director of all our 4B EAEENDERIERS LEBERER - [
subsidiaries. Mr. Chan is responsible for the corporate strategic 4 ABRBLA LTS  BREN KL GERTES) M
planning and overall business development of the Group. Mr.  BRESEA (BITEE) R -

Chan is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung, the father of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong (the non-executive Director) and Mr. Chan Yan
Wing (the executive Director).

Before incorporation of Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited ("YT #ZEEE(EB)BZARATTRETL DR —Ah=
Industrial”) in 1992, Mr. Chan was a sole proprietorship MR IZAT - BRELB—NNNFHLARUNEE (F
conducting business under the name of Yan Tat (HK) Industrial ) BE AR AEBEALLER YT ENEPCBE
Co. from September 1989, which was primarily engaged in the % - :ERIGCAFNEMEBITEME L RFEEBLER - R
manufacturing of PCBs and which enabled Mr. Chan to acquire 4545 PCB 2 #5111 30 FF 48 5% o

relevant industry knowledge and accumulate relevant experience.
Mr. Chan has more than 30 years of experience in the PCB
production and sales.

1 8 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Mr. Chan currently serves as vice chairman of the Fujian
Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen (ZYIH1EERS ), the vice
chairman of The Employers’ Federation of Shenzhen (&3>
EBEHAE) since September 2004 and currently as the
honorary president of the highest ranking members (&= &% 5l &
B E 2 ER) since 2010. Mr. Chan is also currently the vice
chairman of China Printed Circuit Association (Ff BENSYE g&1T
1% @) (CPCA) since March 2010. Mr. Chan was recognised as
"Pioneer Worker” by CPCA in 2012.

Mr. Chan attended his secondary school education in Fujian
province, the PRC from 1962 to 1964.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mrs. Chan Yung (BRE), aged 70, is our executive Director and
vice president. She has participated in the management of the
Group since September 1996. Mrs. Chan is one of the directors
of four of our subsidiaries. Mrs. Chan is responsible for
overseeing the administration, purchasing and logistics of the
Group, corporate strategic planning and overall business
development of the Group. Mrs. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin, and the mother of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and Mr.
Chan Yan Wing.

Mrs. Chan completed her secondary school education in Fujian
province, the PRC in June 1968.

Mr. Chan Yan Wing (BR2K), aged 40, is our executive
Director and vice president. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung, and the brother of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong. Mr. Chan is one of the directors of five of our
subsidiaries.

Mr. Chan has approximately 16 years of experience in the PCB
industry. Mr. Chan joined our Group in July 2003 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing of the Group.

Mr. Chan graduated from University of London in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of science in Management in
August 2002. In December 2016, Mr. Chan was elected as a
member of the First Session of the Shenzhen Municipal Pingshan
District Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
he has been a member and the executive director of the Youth
Committee of Hong Kong Printed Circuit Association since
January 2013, October 2017 respectively. He has been the vice
chairman of the Fujian Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen (&
JITHHBIEREE) since January 2012.

REERRERYTREFEESERK A-FF
FAARERITEEREERE SR GRRE =
—ZEERSREIRSASIGEREER - BT F
FZARES REATB-_—ZTF=AERPEE]
LERTEHENEER - REAR_T——FRP
BERERITRBERR [TETIEE] -

|

B NN A T E - NANFES BERE S
GLELE

HITES

MBZL 705 RWTEFEREBH ®A
—HARFNLARZEAEENER - REALTRARE
ENREMEARMET —REE - RIXLTAREEAR
SEMITH - REE LY R A R B R R AR 8 M B
BEHER BRI ARRBELLENLSE  REL
ERBRBKFEEN R -

RN —NAARNERNAEFEREE TP ERIE -

BREKELE - 4058 © BMITES MEIRE - FREKT
ERRABRERRBELLHNE FRREK T EM
B REESDBEMNBARNESEZ — -

BREDAMPCBITERAN 16 FKR - REANR —TF
ZFEELAMAREE T2 HEBAEENHEER
MG -

BRAEEA—ZT-_FN\AREREERAKRE  EBEE
BPESEN - E-T—RNFE+ A BREARET
ABRBRARBGAHEEZFTIELEE —ELZET
Z8 UHABE=ZZE—=F—AK=ZE—tFt+ A
EARBRERHEEFLEECZERNITEZE - U
rETE-—F-ARTFRITEEESRER -

REKEEZERARAR
F3R 2019

19



Directors and Senior Management Profile

BEENSREEEGERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong (FR 2 3¢), aged 41, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs.
Chan Yung, and the brother of Mr. Chan Yan Wing. Mr. Chan is
one of the directors of seven of our subsidiaries.

Mr. Chan joined our Group in April 2011 and appointed as
executive Director for the period from July 2014 to October
2017. He was primarily responsible for overseeing factory
expansion, information technology, human resources and
building management of the Group. Since November 2017, he
has been re-designated as a non-executive Director. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Chan worked at Benoy Limited (a private
architectural firm) from June 2006 to March 2011 with his last
position as a senior graphic designer where he was responsible
for coordinating project construction and installation and
architectural design. After his re-designation as non-executive
Director, he continues to advise the Board on operational
strategies of the Group and the furtherance of its business
portfolio. He also continues to develop in the area of project
construction and architectural design.

Mr. Chan obtained a higher diploma in graphic design in Hong
Kong Technical Colleges (currently known as Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education) in Hong Kong in September
1999. Mr. Chan then graduated from London College of Printing
(currently known as London College of Communication) in the
United Kingdom in May 2002 and received a bachelor’s degree
of arts in Graphic and Media Design and was awarded a
professional development award in Print Production (Print
Packaging and Buying) in August 2002. He also obtained a
master’s degree in Interactive Digital Media at The University of
Sussex in the United Kingdom in November 2004. Mr. Chan has
been a member of the Youth Committee of Hong Kong Printed
Circuit Association since January 2013.
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ESNEREERHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming (8 £ 88), aged 72, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. Mr.
Chung has over 33 years of experience in manufacturing of
motor cars, toys, electronics and communications. Mr. Chung
was the executive director of L.K. Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 558) and Kader Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 180). Both companies are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chung obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration in the University of East Asia (currently known as
University of Macau) in the Macau Special Administrative Region
in May 1989. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen (£JJ[E£2), aged 69, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 30 September 2016. He
is a retired banker. Mr. Lau held senior positions at the Bank of
East Asia, HSBC and Hang Seng Bank, he has over 37 years of
experience in the banking industry in Hong Kong, China and
Canada. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong in July 1973. He was a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers.

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (E848#8), aged 52, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. Mr.
Yau has over 26 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yau has been working as financial controller and company
secretary of companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Yau had also
been working in international accounting firms.

Mr. Yau graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong in October 1992 with a bachelor’s degree of arts
in Accountancy. Mr. Yau has been an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since April
1994 and March 2000 respectively.
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BEENSREEEGERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our executive Directors and senior management are responsible
for the day-to-day management of our business. The following
table sets out certain information concerning our senior
management as at the date of this report:

BREEE

HTESLSRELEAEARRKERE - TR#D
RABERHERSREEE A TER -

Name Age Positions within the Company

®E Fie REDRZBA

Mr. Lai Hau Yin 52  Chief financial officer and company secretary
REGRL BEMBRERARWE

Mr. Leung Siu Yat 55  Vice president

RAOBRFESE BB

Mr. Ho David Pei Yen 64  Vice president

BIEEEE BIAEE

Mr. Lai Hau Yin (2% E), aged 52, was appointed as our chief
financial officer in March 2014 and our company secretary in
August 2014, and is mainly responsible for overseeing the
financial planning, accounting and company secretarial affairs of
our Group. Mr. Lai has more than 27 years of experience in the
areas of audit and accounting gained from various listed
companies and accounting firm in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lai is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2009, a certified
practise accountant of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants since September 1996 and a certified tax
adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since January
2014.

Mr. Lai obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business from Deakin
University of Australia in Australia in December 1992, a master’s
degree in Business Administration from West Coast Institute of
Management & Technology in Australia in May 2000 (long
distance learning course).

Mr. Leung Siu Yat (R4 ), aged 55, first joined our Group as
a production manager and the vice president in November 2004,
and is mainly responsible for supervising and management of the
PCB factory production of our Group. Mr. Leung has over 29
years of experience in the PCB industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Leung worked for Ellington (Guangdong) Electronics
Technology Company Limited (a PCB manufacturer) as a deputy
general manager of a manufacturing factory from August 2000
to September 2004. From January 1997 to July 2000, he worked
for Kalex Printed Circuit Board Ltd. (a PCB manufacturer) with his
last position as an assistant production manager. From March
1986 to January 1997, Mr. Leung worked for Kalex Circuit Board
(Hong Kong) Ltd., a PCB manufacturer, as a production
superintendent. Mr. Leung was mainly responsible for overseeing
the factory operation and supervising the production staff in
these past positions. Mr. Leung completed his secondary school
education in Guangdong province, the PRC in July 1981.
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Mr. Ho David Pei Yen (E3% ), aged 64, was appointed as our
vice president in January 2004 and is mainly responsible for
market development and product sales of our Group. Mr. Ho has
over 23 years of experience in the PCB industry. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Ho worked for Enigma Interconnect Corp.
(formerly known as Circuit Graphics Ltd, a PCB manufacturer) in
Canada with his last position as president from 1993 to 2002,
where he was mainly responsible for implementing new
technology in PCB production and business development.

Mr. Ho obtained a diploma of technology in mechanical
technology from British Columbia Institute of Technology,
Canada in June 1980. Mr. Ho was accredited as an associate
member of the Society of Engineering Technologists of British
Columbia in Canada in June 1980.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Hau Yin (22Z &) has been the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of our Company since March 2014
and August 2014, respectively. His biographical details are set
out in the above section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile — Senior Management”.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERHRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the
top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to the success
of the Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders,
customers and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing
enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of such
principles and practices.

From 1 January 2019 up to the date of this annual report, the
Company had complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except
code provision A.2.1 as more particularly described below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be segregated and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, we do not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chan Wing Yin
currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider
splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company at a time when it is appropriate and
suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the Group
as a whole.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings of the Model Code for
Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiries to all the Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard of
dealings set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, three of which
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director, and three
are independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the
Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman)
Mrs. Chan Yung

Mr. Chan Yan Wing

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen

Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung. They are
the parents of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong (the non-executive Director)
and Mr. Chan Yan Wing (the executive Director).

The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages 18
to 23.
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ERERHRSE

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT VARIOUS
MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at Board
meetings, committee meetings and shareholder meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

EENEERZHER
EREERBE_FT-NFt_A=1T—BHLFER
TREFEEH ZBSTRMERREZHFEXRH
BESIT -

Directors’ Attendance Attended/Held

ESHEREETAY
Annual
Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEZe88 2 EitZRE®  FMZEe REZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman) REESE(FE) 10/10 N/ATE 171 17 171
Mrs. Chan Yung FEZT 10/10 NATER 17 171 0/1
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BREKEAE 10/10 23 17 17 171
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong REXEE 10/10 NATER 7 17 171
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFGTES
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming BERLE 10/10 33 17 1N 171
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu R RS A 10/10 33 171 17 17
Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 2B L E 10710 33 n n 17
BOARD MEETINGS Exges

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of
the Company. Other Board meetings will be held when
necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. For the year ended 31
December 2019, ten Board meetings were held.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas
and other relevant information are provided to the Directors in
advance of Board meetings. All Directors are consulted to include
additional matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

GENERAL MEETINGS
For the year ended 31 December 2019, one general meeting
was held.
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SEERRE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing
the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities for the
adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and supervising
senior management to ensure that the operation of the Group is
conducted in accordance with the objective of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies which include: (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) to review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects
of the Company's affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their
respective written terms of reference as approved by the Board,
these Board committees are governed by the Company’s articles
of association as well as the Board’s policies and practices (in so
far as the same are not in conflict with the provisions contained
in the articles of association). With the new composition of
members of the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the audit committee, the independent non-
executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their time to
perform the duties required by the respective Board committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management
of the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors.
Clear guidance has been made as to the matters that should be
reserved to the Board for its decision which include matters on,
inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, risk
management and internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on
pages 59 to 148 were prepared on the basis set out in note 2.1
to the consolidated financial statements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditors of the
Company on the Company’s financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 53 to 58.

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules.
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ERERHRSE

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
During the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors have
been given relevant guideline materials and attended a training
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of
disclosure of interest and business of the Group. Such induction
materials and briefings will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors
will be arranged whenever necessary.

All Directors have provided record of training attendance, and
the Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training
in accordance with the Code Provisions.

During the year, all Directors pursued continuous professional
development, and relevant details are set out below:

Name of Directors

B R
EBUIFATESCRELMRANEIIBHIELFE
BIUER NARRREVBUIFNTEFTHTE L
mAR RS 313 RAEELIES| - BREE 5| M RSB
BIANL °

HEREXERRE
REZ_Z-NFT+_A=1+—HILFE 28EF
B REREBEBESIER - X2MEI - ARREE
REZZBENEE BRANESEZBBED MR
MASERGRBEREENER HTEZRZIAE
FR TEREHAEEZSRBERLE®R - 1F
FE ARABREELHFEGHRNEERR -

2REFHCRMBILFECE  MARRBEER
BTG B RSB B IEF -

FN - MAEFHERFHBEIXER  BEFBEHRT
LU

Types of training

EEHR EIEER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chan Wing Yin PRECE 5o 4 A, B
Mrs. Chan Yung PRE 22+ A, B
Mr. Chan Yan Wing PRk A A, B
Non-executive Director FPITES

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong PR A4 A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming EERAKE A, B
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu ERER IR e 4 A, B
Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 2 E sz 5 A A B
Remarks: S

A — Attending conferences/forums/seminars
B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be segregated and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, we do not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chan Wing Yin
currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within our Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for our Group. The Board
considers this structure will enable our Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured
by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced and
high calibre individuals with a sufficient number thereof being
independent non-executive Directors.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, non-executive Director and each of
the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date (except for Mr.
Lau Shun Chuen and Mr. Chan Yan Kwong, whose term is for
three years commencing from his date of appointment) and shall
continue subject to termination by either party in accordance
with the terms thereof and the retirement and re-election
provisions in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting (“AGM") one third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the name
of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in each year
will be those who have been longest in the office since their last
re-election or appointment but as between persons who become
or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by the Company. Such retiring Directors may, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors on 18 November 2014 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. Its
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular
basis; identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Shun
Chuen (Chairman), Mr. Chung Yuk Ming and Mr. Yau Wing Yiu,
one executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Wing, and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Kwong.

For year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting, in which it reviewed the structure of the Board and
recommended to the Board for reappointment of all directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Nomination
Committee also determined the criteria of the board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”).

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
nomination committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations required for the positions. All candidates must be
able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of
the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.
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To enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and to
achieve diversity on the Board, the Board adopted on 18
November 2014 the Board Diversity Policy, pursuant to which (i)
differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of
the Board; and (ii) all Board appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity (including gender diversity).
For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(B) at least one of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications;

(C) atleast 70% of the members of the Board shall have more
than seven years of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

(D) at least two of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has fulfilled
the measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 18 November 2014
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25
and Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference
of the remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with
the Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group and ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are
determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual
performance as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility
and accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration of
the Company’s performance and prevailing market conditions.
The remuneration policy of independent non-executive Directors
is to ensure that the independent non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to
the Company'’s affairs including their participation in respective
Board committees. The emoluments of independent non-
executive Directors are determined with reference to their skills,
experience, knowledge, duties and market trends. As at the date
of this annual report, the remuneration committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung
Yuk Ming (Chairman), Mr. Lau Shun Chuen and Mr. Yau Wing
Yiu, one executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Wing and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Kwong.
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Details of remuneration of Directors and chief executive are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

EERFRITHABHMOFBENGR S M BHREM
8

BIE _ET R BM 8%+ Frdk 2 2 E AT R ST AUE
XEBASE  BE_ZTZ—hNF+_A=+—HLFE
SARERBRKBIRFIEER H 2 FEFMENNNT

Number of
Remuneration band Individual
& E AB
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T2 1,000,00078 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings in which it assessed the performance and
reviewed the remuneration package of the directors and senior
management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Director passed on 18 November 2014 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and
Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of
the audit committee was adopted in compliance with the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor, review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting and oversees risk management and internal control
procedures of the Company. As at the date of this annual report,
the audit committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (Chairman), Mr. Lau Shun
Chuen and Mr. Chung Yuk Ming.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee members met twice with the external auditors
and the Group’s senior management to discuss and review,
among other things, the following matters:

(@)  the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the interim results for the six-month ended 30 June
2019 to ensure the full, complete and accurate disclosure
in the aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the
accounting standards and other legal requirements for
presenting the same to the Board for approval;
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(b)  the term and remuneration for the appointment of Ernst &
Young as external auditors to perform the audit of final
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
review on the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2019;

(c)  the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services;

(d)  the continuing connected transactions of the Group;

(e)  the overall effectiveness of risk management and internal
controls;

(f)  the overall effectiveness of its internal audit function; and

(9) the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff and the accounting and financial reporting matters
and their training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with, inter alia, the audit fees,
effectiveness of the audit process, independence and objectivity
of the external auditors and has recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external
auditors for the ensuing year at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report, the Board has not taken a different view from the
audit committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged Ernst & Young as the
external auditors. Apart from providing audit services, Ernst &
Young also provided non-audit services in connection with the
taxation service. The fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young for the year ended 31
December 2019 approximately amounted to HK$1,480,000 and
HK$491,000, respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of Ernst & Young are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 53 to 58.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Hau Yin being our company secretary is primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of our Group. Mr.
Lai is also our Company’s chief financial officer. The Company
confirms that Mr. Lai has for the year 2019 attended no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main
features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Risk Management System
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

The management assesses the potential risks faced by the Group
from time to time, which is also evaluated annually by a
professional institute engaged by the Group. This year's
evaluation covered the period from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2019, no significant
risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.
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o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present
and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

The management assess the internal control system of the Group
from time to time, which is also evaluated annually by a
professional institution engaged by the Group. The professional
institution has completed the evaluation for the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019. Based on the internal
control reviews conducted in 2019, no significant control
deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which is
consisted of professional staff with relevant expertise. The 1A
function is independent of the Group’s daily operation and
carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal control
systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of
operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment (ii) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA
function and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience
of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and
budget provided were sufficient.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") of the
Company are prepared in accordance with the articles of
association as follows:

(1) One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings, shall have the right, by written notice, to
require an EGM to be called by the Directors of the
Company for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: Room 809-810, Kwong Sang Hong Centre,
151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: ir@yantat.com

Attention: Mr. Lai Hau Yin

Registered office of the Company

Address: Clifton House 75 Fort Street
P.O. Box 1350 Grand Cayman KY-1108
Cayman Islands

Attention: Mr. Lai Hau Yin
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(3) The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(4) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can contact
the Company at the following:

By post to the Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong
By email to ir@yantat.com

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her
proposal (“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to include
the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the
Company in an annual general meeting of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investing public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Extensive information about the Company’s activities for the year
ended 31 December 2019 has been provided in this annual
report. While the AGM provides a valuable forum for direct
communication between the Board and its shareholders, the
Company also maintains its website (www.yantat.com) to
provide an alternative communication channel for the public and
its shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
there has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors have the pleasure of presenting their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” set out on pages 4 and 5 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 8 to
17 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this report
of the Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 59
to 148.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$6.0 cents per
share).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7. This summary
does not form part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 December 2019, the investment properties of the Group
were revalued by an independent firm of professional surveyor
and property valuer on an open market value basis at
HK$26,641,000 (2018: HK$25,850,000).

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
investment properties of the Group are set out below and in
note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 63 and 64 of this
annual report and note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company'’s distributable reserves,
calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$64.9 million (2018: HK$53.3
million).

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$252,000 (2018: HK$352,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers accounted for approximately 34.9% and
63.5% (2018: 31.0% and 60.9%) respectively of the Group’s
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
purchases made by the Group from its largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 35.3% and
67.5% (2018: 38.1% and 69.6%) of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2019, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors,
their close associates, nor any shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into, or existed, during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the Report of the Board of the
Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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SUBSIDIARIES
The details of the major subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group's total capital expenditure amounted
to approximately HK$9.1 million (2018: HK$27.7 million) which
was mainly used for acquisition of machineries and equipment.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
date are set out in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The details of the Group’s charges on assets are set
out on page 17.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE

CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman)
Mrs. Chan Yung

Mr. Chan Yan Wing

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting
and shall continue thereafter until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the service
contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or
otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment.
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No Director has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered
to be independent.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one
third of the existing Directors shall retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director of the
Company or an entity connected with such Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the
business of the Group to which the holding company of the
Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 18 to 23 of this annual
report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the prospectus of the
Company dated 26 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), there
was no contract of significance or contract of significance for
provision of services, to which the Company or its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of the controlling shareholders has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-
competition undertaking.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus.

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the controlling
shareholders have become effective from the Listing Date.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director of the
Company has made an annual declaration in respect of their
compliance with the terms of non-competition undertaking.

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the executive
Directors and non-executive Director have become effective from
the Listing Date.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors and non-executive
Director of the Company have complied with the non-
competition undertaking and the non-competition undertaking
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non
Competition Undertakings”) referred by the controlling
shareholders to the Company as provided under the non-
competition undertaking.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2019.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the following continuing
connected transactions (as defined under the Listing Rules) for
the year ended 31 December 2019:

(1)  On 3 May 2018, Yan Tat (Hong Kong) Industrial Limited
("YT Industrial”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a lease agreement (“Yantek
Lease”) with Yantek Electronics Company Limited
("Yantek”) a connected person of the Company within the
meanings of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Yantek
Lease, YT Industrial shall lease from Yantek the premises
situated at Flat E on 15th Floor and Flat Roof immediately
above of Tower 5 and Car Parking Space No. 11 on Car
Park B1, One Beacon Hill, No. 1 Beacon Hill Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with a gross total floor area of
approximately 1,473 square feet at a monthly rental of
HK$58,000 for a term of two years commencing on 1 June
2018 and ending on 31 May 2020 as staff quarter for Mr.
Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung, and the leasee will
be changed from YT Industrial to Yan Tat Technology
Limited (“YT Technology”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, commencing from 1 November
2019. The lease term is from 1 November 2019 to 31
October 2021 with the monthly rent and use unchanged.
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(2)  On 1 November 2018, YT Technology renewed a tenancy
agreement (“Headquarters Lease”) with Yantek, a
connected person of the Company within the meanings of
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Headquarters Lease, YT
Technology shall lease from Yantek the office premises and
warehouse located at Room 09, 10 and 14 on 8th Floor,
Kwong Sang Hong Centre, Nos. 151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong Kowloon, Hong Kong at a monthly rental of
HK$90,000 for a term of 2 years commencing on 25
November 2018 and ending on 24 November 2020 for the
Group’s use.

Yantek is beneficially owned as to 34% by Mr. Chan Yan Wing,
33% by Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and 33% by Ms. Chan Yan Sam.
Mr. Chan Yan Wing and Mr. Chan Yan Kwong are the Directors
of the Company. Ms. Chan Yan Sam is the sister of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong and Mr. Chan Yan Wing and the daughter of Mr.
Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above are
fully exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
requirements and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the year is disclosed in note 34 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company'’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our
Shareholders passed on 18 November 2014 for the purpose to
provide our Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and or providing
benefits to eligible participants and for such other purposes as
the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
may, at their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes to take up options to
subscribe for shares: (a) any employee, supplier, service provider,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of the Group
(including any director, whether executive and whether
independent or not, of the Group) who is in full-time or part-
time employment with the Company or any subsidiaries, (b) any
person who have contributed or may contribute to the Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 8
December 2014 unless the Company seeks the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit
under the Share Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of the Company will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating 10% limit.

Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in the section
headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix V to
the Prospectus. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
are summarised as follows:

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 18 November 2014 and remains in force until
17 November 2024. The Company may, by resolution in general
meeting or, such date as the Board determined, terminate the
Share Option Scheme at any time without prejudice to the
exercise of options granted prior to such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”)
which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within the
date as specified in the offer letter issued by the Company. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years commencing on the
date of grant and expiring on the last day of such 10-year period
subject to the provisions for early termination as contained in the
Share Option Scheme.
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The total number of new shares of the Company that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 24,000,000 shares, which represents
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of this
report.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject
to issuance of a circular by the Company and approved by its
shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, is required to be approved by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to 31
December 2019, no options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

Additional particulars of the Company’s Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2019 was any of the
Company and its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age
18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or debentures
of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interests in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company, its Group
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules:

EERIFETBRAERKRS - HERGORE
BEPZEEIARE

RZB-—NF+TZA=+—RH EFRARAEENT
BABRARR - HEBEKE AR R, LEHEE (GE
ERBFHFLHEGRMN((EZRBMEED ) EXVER) Z
Bt - HEROD REEZETES TIRERRIEE S
KREIEIGPIE352RA TFEMNELMAERS - SR
& BT R AP E 2 1R 2 57 RIZR R AN R A A Ko Bt <2 P Y
Rzt -

The Company P NN
Number of
ordinary
Name of Capacity/ shares held Percentage of
Name of Director Group member nature of interest (Note 1)  shareholding
BEEBEREE
EEHA SEREATINERE B HEE4E (PFEE) BERESL
Mr. Chan Wing Yin The Company Interest in a controlled 180,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 2) shares (L)
FRECE S A PAN/NE] REHLEE R (HE2) 180,000,000
A& (L)
Mrs. Chan Yung The Company Interest of spouse (Note 3) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
BT PIN/NE] BB (5 3) 180,000,000
A% (L)
Notes: BRE
1. The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the 1. [Ll I EERNAR A SRR AR B AR D HIF A

Company or the relevant associated corporation

2. The Company is held as to approximately 75% by Million Pearl Holdings
Ltd. (“Million Pearl”). Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin
and 30% by Mrs. Chan Yung. Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs.
Chan Yung. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Yin is taken to be interested in
the same number of shares in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

3. Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs.
Chan Yung. Mrs. Chan Yung is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Yin. Under
the SFO, Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of
shares to which Mr. Chan Wing Yin is interested.

2. 7872 &) e Million Pearl Holdings Ltd. ([ Million Pearl |) %5 4975%
%% © Million Pearl IR B & & KRB L+ 5 RI#HF 70% K
30% H#Em c RABEERRBELLHOERS - BRIFZES KATK
Bl REBEEEWSIERRBL L HEARENEREE 2G5
hEAE o

3. Million Pearl 7 5l FRPR &S B 55 4 MR B L T35 5 70% K 30% #
o RBLZLTAREKBREMAE - RIEZHLBEEN - R
BT WRERREB CARARENERKE 2ROTHESE
P o
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Associated Corporation sk S
Number of
Name of ordinary
associated Capacity/ shares held Percentage of
Name of Director corporation nature of interest (Note 1)  shareholding
FEEERHE
EEgE HEEE & B B4 EmtE ERD) BFERES
Mr. Chan Wing Yin Million Pearl Beneficial owner/ 10 shares 100%
Interest of spouse
BRECB 4 ERnA A TBEE 10 %
Mrs. Chan Yung Million Pearl Beneficial owner/ 10 shares 100%
Interest of spouse
PREL L ERBEAAN I BERE 10 %
Note: MEE
1. The disclosed interest represents the interests in the associated corporation, 1. P BB 25 15 A MBS A Million Pearl MRS - HEMRAE o4

Million Pearl, which is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by
Mrs. Chan Yung. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs.
Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which
other is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRREMALTRAEQ T RS RBEK
BhRZERR KR

RZB-NFT_A=1T—"8 BREZERAN ATA
T/ ER(BEFHIARAETETBRABRIN RARE
Bt iRBER O T - EE R SR RIRE SR
B EPIEXVEDSE 2 X FE 3D #IRAR AR B REH
REIAR - RRIBFH RHE GPIE 336 RE AR
REREAFENELMOERIORBNOT

Number of
ordinary % of
shares held interest in
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest (Note 1)  the Company
BEEEREE RAERQTFZ
BEEZE R 54 REHE (FzE1) EEEO
Million Pearl (Note 2) Beneficial owner 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
Million Pearl (B§7E2) EmlAA 180,000,000 A% (L)
Mr. Chan Wing Yin Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
PREEE 4 REHLEBEER (H5E3) 180,000,000 A% (L)
Mrs. Chan Yung Interest of spouse (Note 4) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)

PRt fe s (MiFE4)
Notes:
1. The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the

Company or the relevant Group member.
2. Million Pearl is directly interested in approximately 75% of the Company.

3. The Company is held as to approximately 75% by Million Pearl. Million
Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs. Chan
Yung. Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung. Under the SFO,
Mr. Chan Wing Yin is taken to be interested in the same number of shares
in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

4. Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs.
Chan Yung. Mrs. Chan Yung is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Yin. Under
the SFO, Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

180,000,000 A% (L)
WEE :

1. [LRRZALTHRARR S A EEEREKE A RTNROTFRE -

2. Million Pearl B ##H ANR B 41 75% 8 i -

3. XA &) Million Pearl 578 #975% ## 2 © Million Pearl 1 FR 48 B
EERBRBLZEHRIEBT0% R30%Hax c RABLEARRK
BLTHOERE - REFFRBEEE - REBEERRBREKR
B AR ERSENRDPHEEER -

4. Million Pearl B &R &8 & 5 4 R BR BB 22+ 5 Bl45 8 70% & 30% #
o RBAZLTARKBRENAE - RIBZSRBEEN - K
BATHWRARRRB o ERARE 2 HRKE OO THES
P o

BREXAEEEIN R_F-NAF+-_A=+—8"
ESHINTEEMEMAL " BR(EERARAE
ETBABRINRARBRMIAAREBR DD - HER
RREF LB GOIEXVEDSE 2 M 30 BB IEX AR AR
BIWENREIORE - HIREEF LB EDIF 336
BRAARBRERAFENESLMORRIORE -
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS
During the year, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of
their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or has
any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither did the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed
securities.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding the
Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of
this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages
24 to 38 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group produces PCB in China and sells them around the
world, and is faced with certain different types of risks and
uncertainties. The principal items are listed as below.

The COVID-19 outbreak, which has spread across China
and various regions in the world, has caused material
impact on people’s livelihood and the economy with the
operation and production of enterprises being exposed to
adverse conditions.

i.  The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from
major customers, particularly automobile customers. The
decrease in demand from major customers may materially
and adversely affect the business.

ii.  Fluctuation in exchange rates may adversely affect the
business.
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iv. The Group may be subject to any labour shortages, iv. ZA&EBESHAEM[SS TERR - S THRA E
increased labour cost or other factors affecting labour R EM RS A E . N EE2E B
force, or full implementation of social security and public HEREBMABLBE  ErEURERR
housing policies, which may materially affect the Group’s EFEE MR EKERTE -
business operation and financial condition.

v.  The PRC government has tightened its environmental v. HEEFUETHBRIEHES - AR
regulation. Although the Group'’s current operation falls in SEBENEERATEER  BRHEBRM
line with the requirement, it may be affected and incur BRE—SIRSHEBESIE  AEEMNE
additional expenses when the relevant regulatory threshold B e TR ENELTEINER -
is further raised in the future.

vi.  The US implements its America First policy, raises tariffs on  vi. ZERE(TEBRELEE  YHPEHGEONE
imported Chinese goods, and restricts Huawei from YiRE R - RFIRZE AL ESGER -
participating in 5G projects, which may slow down EEAIEE R ERE - TR 1EPCB
economic growth across the globe, and in return TISBRELK -
decelerate the development of the PCB market.

vii.  The Brexit has officially taken place in early 2020, the vii. HEABRMERE T -_ZTEY2ER
negative impacts of which remain unknown to the EU 1T EREEMNEEFED N EMmMN -
market.

vii. Currently, various PCB manufacturers are vigorously  viii. B & 3% PCB & & 7 IF /£ A I8 & TR EE BE -
expanding their production capacity. When the market EMEANATERERE  MEBRENRABT -
fails to meet the development expectation, the excessive SIBETAEERS  HEEMER A5
production capacity will result in irrational competition A EE i o
among industrial peers, pushing down the unit price and
diminishing the company’s profitability.

ix.  The Group's sole production facility is based in Shenzhen. ix. ZA&EBHEEEMANZRY - 24
If this facility experiences any issue that results in a lower ERN e AR TRMEEREE R
production output, and no third-party assistance is BERERNKIE=ZFHE k3 2HEE
identified, our sales will decline. B o

x.  The Group’s major production operation activities take x. AEBFELEELEMHHETBEAM - &
place in Mainland China. Any change to the policies in NI BER M Z ) (BEMRE - INEEH - BT
Mainland China (including taxation, foreign exchange OfZ)nfrexr 23 A AEFEHNRERIT o
control, and imports and exports) is likely to affect the
Group's overall performance.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION RIERE

Environmental protection is a collective responsibility not to be {RERFEEZFNAABHNHEFEFTE - REB PP EZEY

R EERE A &TEN R ERREMN - BEHRR
SBEER AEEPEANRERRMEEBIEGRE
MTHEEEEZHERY  BERL - RABHRES
IRIRNEE - AEBERRRESFASTFHETRANE
BRE  BERSASEEBERESKNEATZE -
BPERERRMERENRBEEEZFCDEMR
IATF16949:2016 fh E [RFERFE * ISO14001 IRIEEF R R
HLERFE 1509001 fr & B 18 R £ M AS9100D & & 18

RELARUL796 L2 EIBEREBS -

ignored. The Group’s production factories in Shenzhen, China
possesses state-of-the-art PCB technologies and attaches a great
importance to environmental protection. The Group recognises
that the production process of PCBs would generate more
emissions than some other industries. In regard of this, we strive
to enhance the efficiency of environmental protection. The
Group sets up different management requirements for
environmental protection every year, aiming at reducing negative
impact on the environment from our operation. We have
obtained certification of IATF16949:2016 (quality assurance),
ISO14001 (environment management system), 1ISO9001 (quality
management system) and AS9100D (quality management
system) as well as UL-796 (safety and management) for PCB
quality standard and environment management system.
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The Group strictly observed the laws and regulations governing
air pollution, noise pollution, hazardous chemicals, sewage and
waste discharge and other environmental matters issued by PRC
national, provincial and municipal governments and authorities.
Meanwhile, as a responsible corporation, we produce all of our
products in compliance with the requirement of Cleaner
Production Standard: Printed Circuit Board Manufacturing (&2
EEZE : HRIERRIREIES) issued by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of China.

With resources in the Earth becoming increasingly scarce,
corporations should have long-term vision instead of focusing on
existing interests. The Group sees that there are economic
benefits to be capitalized in environmental protection and our
effort focuses chiefly in the following aspects, among others:
actively pushing forward the initiative of energy conservation
and consumption reduction by saving energy, water, material
and reducing resource consumption during the course of our
production, with a view to maximizing the cost effectiveness
with minimal resources; and full implementation of clean
production to achieve waste reduction at source. At the same
time, under the guidance of a paperless office, the Group
introduced the Enterprise Resources Planning System (“ERP”
System), through which it implemented electronic management
on the its production, sales, supply chain, and human resources
with a view to saving paper.

The environmental, social and governance report in Compliance
with appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be issued in due
course.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Board paid attention to the Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. External
compliance and legal advisers are engaged to ensure transactions
and business performed by the Group are within the applicable
legal framework. Updates on applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees
and operation units from time to time.

By order of the Board

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
CHAN Wing Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A AR

EY:

To the shareholders of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yan
Tat Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “"Group”) set out on pages 59 to 148, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HREEEERARLARRE
(RESHEZMALZFRAE])

=R
BMEFEFIIHNESIAEFE 148 AR EEEIER
BRARTERARD RENBAR ([EX£E ] NES
MBHRE  WEAMBRREBER_-F-NAF+=A
=+ BENREVBHANKREBREZB LFENRE
BEX SE2ERER SARREHRREER
ERER  AREAEFBHRERME  BRIEFK
RME -

BARA  ZEHEVBRREBREFTESHMAE
(BB EtEAg ) BR(EEMHEREEL) ([F
BUBREEDAEEMALMRRT ESER
E-NF+-_A=+—BNREUBHIRRBEZA
LTFENEAVBRARGEARASANE YD ERE
B R BP0 I R AR E &= A HEE

ERWER
BACREFLEMAGRANTEETEA(E
AETER D EITER - WAIEZFERTAENE
FEAEAREZBEH BT S W EHRRAENET]
MAPIEE— TR - REFEGHAGRMNE
EestemER TR D  RMABYR EEE-
WEETTARNEMERBEEST - RFBE - &
PR BT RERETE NEEMARMNERE
IR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB HRE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

BRETER

MARBAFRSBRERMNEXHE BB AR
BUBBERNEARRERNSEH - GELFREEY
HEPBRRBRETENALTLKERINER TET
BRIER  BRATHELEREHEBNER - JMY
Nt E—FREETTRIAEYNER AL RS

=
S

o

BPEKETTARS [RBERE GRS M BEREK
AENEE] BoMANET  SREEEHEREN
FREBNEME - HEM - BPNBRS TIERERT
REETENEA M B RRERNERAR MK E
AHEF  BPIBITERFNER  BREY TS
BATRITHRET - REMNGEMERRERERE
AAEREH T AR

Key audit matters

BREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BRAWESTNNEERRETSE

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5B AR E

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$197,743,000 before
impairment provision of approximately HK$3,557,000.
RZZBE-NF+ZA=+—10 &BEEEFEWRIBLE
#9197,743,000 7% 7T (FNFRIRE R F4Y 3,557,000 & 7T AT) ©

Significant management judgement and estimation were
required in assessing the expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for the trade receivables, with reference to the grouping of
various customer segments, ageing profile of the trade
receivables balances, existence of disputes, and past
repayment history of customers and forecast economic
conditions.

MR E S REEGIEN B REEEE ((TEAEEBE RAE
HEBREREHEANE  E2ERTFOHMHE  EFE
YORIBESRIREREDN - EEFEMHAREFP BT ENESL
A AR TEA

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

HR R BEHNARA M RAME2.4 3% 19
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In evaluating management’s impairment assessment, our
procedures included: (i) obtaining confirmations and evidence
of subsequent settlements for selected trade receivable
balances on a sample basis; and (ii) evaluating management’s
assumptions used to determine the ECLs through testing of
the underlying information on the ageing reports generated
by the Group’s financial reporting system and assessing the
repayment history of the debtors as well as the forward-
looking factors with reference to the related publicly available
information. We also assessed the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

AR B ERERGR - PRNEFE () BUSL MR
EWNE SRR R AR EEAENBRINER - R>)aHh
ERERANECHRMAEEERENRE  FERAG &%
E o B E RO E KR BRI S MBS B R EEBA
BENELARSD2ERBARAIGERNARIEES - &
FITRAT I 4R & B RS HR = 2 AR ER -
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B B HRE ()

Key audit matters

BEETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RANETNAEEBERETSE

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Bl 77 E 2 A B FEE

The Group had inventories with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$51,928,000 at 31 December 2019. The
Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of
inventories to determine whether any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value is required after
considering, inter alia, the ageing analysis of inventories,
current market conditions and the expected future sales of
goods and usages of materials.
EEER T NF+_AZT—BHEEREEY
519280008 T2 FE - EEBEHUFEZEEERT
EHERN URZE(ETBIE)FEZRENN - ]/iT
MAREREPHRAREEIMHBGRETEESHTER
FEMRME AR FE -

The determination of net realisable value requires
management to make significant assumptions and
estimates that affect the reported amount of inventories
and related disclosures.

BTSN EREEREBFELYEFEZRBREER
MR EN EARRR MG -

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

HEERRESH N RS M EHRME24 318

In evaluating management'’s assessment, our procedures
included: (i) observing physical inventory counts at major
locations and checking the condition of inventories; (ii)
obtaining an understanding of the net realisable value
assessments made by management; (iii) reviewing the
inventory ageing and the usage of materials subsequent to
year end; and (iv) comparing the actual selling prices of
finished goods subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to
their carrying amounts.

FHEEREEN R SRORERFA ()R EEMHER
wiFERE  URAIEEMR : () TREREYHAIZR
BEFTVERTE (i BHFERRINEREIMERE &
(V) RFRIE LB e BIR S B ERARHEE -

=
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB HRE (F)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B B HRE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

BREMA B REMBRREABNER

BAWER  RHSRAUBRRABERSIAFEHR
MEFERMEBNERNBRRANGAIBRE - AL
HABERMEROREMRE - RAEH BN
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ERAMENARATAEMA LR ESRETAER
fE o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB HRE (F)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Chi Ming.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEeEER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—ZE—NE+_-A=+—HIFE

2018
—T-N\F
HK$’000
TR
766,006

(587,117)

178,889
18,333
(25,063)
(82,448)

(62)
(8,099)

81,550

(23,157)

58,393

2019
—ZE—-hF
Notes HK$'000
B 5T FHET

REVENUE I &5 5 650,408
Cost of sales SHERK A (502,018)
Gross profit EF 148,390
Other income and gains E A A Wz 5 22,850
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HR X (19,028)
General and administrative expenses — —#% & 1 TE B 2 (77,968)
Other expenses HEMmAx ((NE))
Finance costs BB R AR 7 (6,075)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A& F 6 68,056
Income tax expense Fris®if X 10 (12,155)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ERAREEAEEFEREFR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF

THE COMPANY
EARNINGS PER SHARE AAREBEREEA

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EAERER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF

THE COMPANY 12

Basic and diluted AR R EE CLCERERG Gl HK24.3 cents 7L

BREEEERERAA
F3{ 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HE_—_T—NF+_-A=+—HI-FE

2019 2018
bl ==
HK$"000 HK$'000
FH TR

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 58,393
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) H#hZ2EIW A~ (Eia)
Other comprehensive loss that REBARTAIEEN D EEEEN
may be reclassified to profit or loss in HMEEEE :
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBHER 5
of foreign operations (27,323)
Other comprehensive income that REZBRBTEFHEZERD
will not be reclassified to profit or Hih2EUWA -
loss in subsequent periods:
Change in fair value of a financial BRAFET AR MEERED
asset at fair value through HHEENATEE
other comprehensive income 163
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMEEEER
FOR THE YEAR (27,160)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AARFEAEAEBEFAZE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO LON L
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 31,233

60 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

me BRI R

31 December 2019 —ZE—hFE+=-A=1+—H

Notes
BiEE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 13
Investment properties REME 14
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(b)
Prepaid land lease payments Faft L E A 15(a)
Deposits for purchases of items of BEWE  BERREIER

property, plant and equipment HiRE 16
Deposits B 20
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 27
Financial asset at fair value through LA EFAEAM

other comprehensive income PEHBRNMBEE 17
Total non-current assets EMENEELE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18
Trade and bills receivables B SN FIA R ERREE 19
Prepayments, deposits and other FERFRIE - e Rk

receivables Hth pE IR 20
Pledged deposits and restricted cash 2 #1730 & Z PR #IIR & 21
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEED 21
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIELECEE 22
Total current assets mENEEMAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables Z S ENFIEREMNZE 23
Other payables and accruals Hth e FRIB KBS B A 24
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRITIE R 25
Finance lease payables R EAE R FRIA 26
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(c)
Tax payable FEZTHIE
Liabilities directly associated with EABAFIEHENEE

assets classified as held for sale HEMABENAR 22
Total current liabilities MENE BB
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFHR
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRDAMS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

2019

o
HK$'000
FERT

362,956
26,641
6,657

116
9,166

4,159

409,695

51,928
216,446

2,760
31,433
129,434

432,001
5,454

437,455
109,492

65,220
84,236

1,623
15,959

276,530

117

276,647

160,808

570,503

BREEEERERAA
F3{ 2019

2018
—T-N\F
HK$’000
TR

398,676
25,850
4,599
616
296
11,706

4,119

445,862

61,599
255,704

8,473
31,621
135,876

493,273

493,273

124,973
75,249
178,539
436

17,319

396,516

396,516

96,757

542,619
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

31 December 2019 —ZE—hFE+=-A=1+—H

2019
—ZE—-hEF
Notes HK$’000
M FHET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBAMR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 570,503
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Finance lease payables RIE S AT 26 -
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15(c) 567
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 27 22,998
Deferred income EEWA 24 12,086
Total non-current liabilities IEmB B EERE 35,651
Net assets BEFHAE 534,852
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AELER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITRA 28 2,400
Reserves & 30 532,452
Total equity B 534,852
Chan Yung Chan Wing Yin
BREB FREeE
Director Director
o o
62 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2018
—TNF
HK$'000
THET

542,619
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20,549
9,854

30,966

511,653

2,400
509,253
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERSER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZE—hF1+_-_A=+—HIFEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAEEAER
Fair value
resenve of
a financial
asset through Land and
Share other building Exchange
Isstied premium Capital ~ comprehensive revaluation fluctuation Reserve Retained Total
capital account reserve income reserve reserve funds* profits equity
SARMEE
Ysmats
BEf ftn BEATE  UHRET 378
BX B e R EfE RBEE  ERES REEH fEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThT T Tan T Tk Thr TAn T
At 1 January 2018 R=2-\§-A-A 2400 62,609 60,455 944 485 35,671 35,841 282,015 480,420
Profit for the year Byt - - - - - - - 58,393 58,393
Other comprehensive incomel(oss) EREMRERA/(F8) -
for the year:
Change in fair value of a financial asset “BEATEHALBZE
at fair value through other WEMEBEES
comprehensive income ATEES - - - 163 - - - - 163
Exchange differences on translation of BEENSHELZE
foreign operations - - - - - (27303 - - 27303)
Total comprehensive incomef(oss) for the year ~ £R2EMA/(B8) £E - - - 163 - (27303) - 58393 31,233
Transfer from retained profits ERAREET - - - - - - 7468 (7,468) -
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\E+=A=t+-8 2,400 62,609 60,455 1,107% 485¢ 8,348° 43309 332,940° 511,653

BREEEERERAA

F3R 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBHR

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HE_—_T—NF+_-A=+—HI-FE

Share
Issued premium Capital
capital account reserve

B3 R
3 BEE  BARE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TER TR TR

At 31 December 2018 R-EB-N\E+-A=+-H 2,400 62,609 60,455
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 ROREUBREENZ 163
fEe
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZZ-NE-f-B(HE7) 2,400 62,609 60455
Profit for the year FRE
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EREBRERA/(BE) :
for the year:
Change i fair value of a financial asset —BRATETAREE
at fair value through other WEniBEER
comprehensive income LFEEY
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEBNELEE
foreign operations

Total comprehensive incomefloss) for the year £RZTEU A/ (B1E) 2E

Transfer from retained profits BRARRER
2018 final dividend “E-\FRERE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+ZA=+-H 2,400 62,609° 60,455*

64

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises, a portion of the profits of certain subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") is required to be transferred to the
PRC reserve funds which are restricted as to use. These PRC entities are not
required to effect any further transfer when the amount of the PRC reserve
funds reaches 50% of their registered capital. The PRC reserve funds can be
used to make good their future losses or to increase their registered capital.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$532,452,000 (2018: HK$509,253,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Attributable to owners of the Company
RATRAAER
Fair value
reserve

of a financial
asset through Land and

other building  Exchange

comprehensive  revaluation  fluctuation Retained Total

income reserve reserve profits equity

AARMRE

*

#

it
ABEE  tHEET ES
AVERE  BERE  RBRE  BREer  REEA L
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TER TER TR TR TER TER
1,107 485 8,348 3309 3390 511,653

(18) (18)
3309 3 511,635

55,901 55,901

133

(18.417) (18,417)

(18,417) = 55,901 31,617
- 5,081 (5,081) -
= = (14,400) (14,400)

1,240 (10,069)* 48,390° 369,342 534,852

RBAABINEIEE D RRERORR - B TRLAFEARIM
B([FE]OMBRRNS EHABREPEFERES M
ZERBESNWABZIRG - ETRFEERSNSEENLE
HEEREMBRALN 50% & - AR EFBE— P - P
B RS R AE B R B R AT A A AR M AR AN -

ZERBRP B IEREE MR R AR 4R S 5 532,452,000
#m(=ZZ—)\& : 509,253,000 7%7T) °



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—TE—h&E+—-HA=1—HIFFE

2019

—ZE—-hF

Notes HK$'000
B 5T TExT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHABRERE
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax FR B A& A 68,056
Adjustments for: TP SIEAE -
Finance costs BhE KA 7 6,075
Bank interest income RITAEWA 5 (598)
Depreciation of property, ME - BERREITE
plant and equipment 6 27,993
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 6 2,048
Amortisation of land lease payments ~ tHFHEF Iﬁﬁﬁfﬁ 6 =
Reversal of write-down of BOMRFEZ AT #RFE
inventories to net realisable value 6 (408)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) B SR ZIE KR
of trade and bills receivables ERZERE CRERR) 6 (211)
Fair value gain on investment BEYE QAT ERE
properties 5,6 (1,387)
Amortisation of deferred income R B B (1,500)
Write-off of items of property, MY - BERREEER
plant and equipment 6
Gain on disposal of items of HEYE  BERKEER
property, plant and equipment s 5,6
Realisation of exchange fluctuation B ARIREIR
reserve upon deregistration of a R B
subsidiary 5
Impairment of other receivables H fto FEUGRIB R (B 6
Decrease in inventories FERL
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills 28 AE e N ES
receivables A, (3G )
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, B 3IE - &S R E I FEUL
deposits and other receivables IR A, () 5,590
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills B EMNREREMNERE
payables En/ CRd) (13,887)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables — E fib &1} AIE&FEQJr;E?ﬁH
and accruals a0, Crid (6,062)
Exchange realignment ME B (2,222)
Cash generated from operations EEERENRE 122,805
Interest received EFE 598
Interest paid ERFLE (6,075)
Interest element of finance lease BERER SN RNFBE D
rental payments =
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BREFEBNER 19
Overseas taxes paid EAHEINEIE (8,261)

Net cash flows from operating activities & EE TSRS R EFEE

109,086

BREEEERERAA
F3{ 2019

2018
—T-N\F
HK$’000
TR

81,550

8,099
(568)

28,070
249

(1,240)
898

(2,001)
(1,100)

113,647
5,645

(22,821)
(1,876)
3,201

9,240
(4,549)

102,487
568
(7,936)

(163)
8
(6,045)

88,919
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—FE— N+ —-HA=1—HILFE

2019 2018

—ZE—-hEF —E-N\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M TExT FET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBHAERERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BB E¥E - BERREEER

and equipment (14,479)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BENKXEEE

property, plant and equipment FriS /18 392
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEE ¥ - WiE MRIEHEE

property, plant and equipment & 16 (1,934)
Receipts of government grants WS B B T 8 B =
Decrease/(increase) in certain time and & F A RIBTTFERR L

bank deposits pledged as security (&) - EEMEE TIRTT

for certain banking facilities and RE N RN EE 2 1R

bills payable 2,212
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash R &|14IR & w4 (1L 40) (1)
Net cash flows used in investing BB EEMAREREFR

activities (13,810)
CASH FLOWS FROM METBHFERERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FIERITIER 223,845 330,329
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRITEN (317,484) (334,292)
Principal portion of lease payments/ ~ A&tz #EHREH S

finance lease rental payments RN SAY 31(a) (2,663) (6,538)
Dividend paid ERRE (14,400) -
Net cash flows used in REEBFARESREFE

financing activities (110,702) (10,501)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH B R REZEYHE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in, G ) (4,019) 64,608
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRES RIRNSEEY

beginning of year 135,876 72,832
Cash and cash equivalents included in 5t AN B A EHENEER

assets classified as held for sale B &fﬁiaﬂﬁﬁ‘f% 22 (1,134) -
Effect of foreign exchange rate EEEH)FE

changes, net (1,289) (1,564)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£XBEERRLEEY

END OF YEAR 129,434 135,876
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH BRE&RBESSEWEHIN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re NIRITER 21 129,434 135,876
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR M AL

31 December 2019 —F—h#E+—-HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEEHR

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on ARFRZZE-—HFELANBRER=HES
8 July 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability RERNREERESHESTMR L AEREER
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman AT] o AR T EE S BRI /3 Clifton House,
Islands. The address of the registered office of the P.O. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman
Company is Clifton House, P.O. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° 7K A RI#) £ Z &8
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal WERERENEBESEB 151-153 K EE/TH
place of business of the Company is located at Room 809- 13809-810 % ©

810, Kwong Sang Hong Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the FA - AEEXERFRIERBEDRERER
manufacture and sale of printed circuit boards.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The AATRMDARBEEHMELSHMBR AR (TR
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Frl)FEREm - EFRR - AAFRICEBERA
Exchange”). In the opinion of the directors, the immediate A RGEERARANEBER RS TMAK
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the 37,2 Million Pearl Holdings Ltd. ©

Company is Million Pearl Holdings Ltd., which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries EHENMBEARNESR
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RARMBARKFBOT
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up attributable to the
Name business registered capital Company Principal activities
SR BRITEERE
L B ES S BREMRE ALFIREEZEIL FEXHR
Direct  Indirect
=k CiE3
Yan Tat Group Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
RBARREE/BA 100% 7T REEK
Jumbo Height Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
ERBRAF RBARARESR/ER 1% REER
Vital Alliance Global Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
ZERRIFBR AT RBRRRES/BE (E REER
Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
BE(BB)EXBRATA 6 5,000,000 787 EERIEER
Yan Tat Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
BEMRARRA BB 1,000,000 7T EERIERR
RESEERBERATE
F£3} 2019 6 7
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1.

63

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

1. 2IAREERER %)

Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up attributable to the
Name business registered capital Company Principal activities
EMRL ERTEBERE/
&8 AR EK LS HREMBE FAFEEEZESL FEEK
Direct Indirect
B &
Yan Tat International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
BERBRERAR 0 1B BEHRIERR
Yan Tat Global Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Inactive
BERNARLA Bk 1R R
Yan Tat Printed Circuits PRC/Mainland China HK$165,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and sale
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. "** of printed circuit boards
BEER(RI)ARRA)"* * BB 165,000,000 % 7T g R EHRIE R
Grace Yan Tat Electronics PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. "**
LREET(RI)ERRR"* HE/HE N AEE RENE
1,000,000 7T
Yan Tat Environmental Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB43,100,000 - 100 Property holding
(Nantong) Co., Ltd. " # *
HRBERRMRARRA " HE/HE N AEE REDE
43,100,0007T
Notes: B & -
* Their statutory financial statements were not audited by Ernst & * REETUMHRERCEBLKGTMEBIREIRE
Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young XEFAN BRGNS — R EIEZ -
global network.
" Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law. BIRFEEREMRIIEBERE -
" Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law. BIRFEEREMABRAR -
# The English names of these companies represent the best effort # ZEAFNRXEBIARRERERBEAB HEED

made by management of the Company to directly translate their
Chinese names as these companies did not register any official

English names.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for a financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income and investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1

fm S EL A
ZEVBHRRDREREGHMAS(HES
FHEIAE ) BmEEEM B REER(FERH
BHREEL]) (BREAERAMHRE LR - &
AE RN (TEEST LR kREg) FER
REETRAAREE R BRG] 60 5B R E MR
8.

BR—REAVEFALCGEERENYHEE
RIREYMEARFEFTEIN - BHERERTIIREE
SERAEREL - RABEBIN - ZFFHEHRERINA
AT(BT) 2% MABHEINEERE
P TAL

mERE
RAEMBREREIBAR A RENE QR (G A
SEDBE_ZT-NAFT+_A=1T—"BLLHEE
2K - MBARAARNDR EE A HEEES
MER(BEREBLER) EAKEH2EK
BEHREBHNT B O HAERRKIEHERIA
KB BHREHRITENES (AAEERE
TREENUTEREHRARMEB BT 1E
M) FEZL O - BNESIEHIRE -

MARBEEKEEEAINREERKZH
RENEMRBELERN - AAKERFEEEES
BEHREHRNENREEE —HEBEEE
KiER - B

@) HEREHREMEBIHAEANGOLY:

(o) EMAORETELNEN K&

@ AEENERERIELERTE-
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2.1

2.2

70

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12

and HKAS 23

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19, HKAS
28 and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle,
which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group's
financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new
and revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2019. Under this method,
the standard has been applied retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continued
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the
transition practical expedient allowing the standard
to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that
were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been
applied only to contracts entered into or changed on
or after 1 January 2019.

2.2 SEERBREZED (@)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

72

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various properties
and a vehicle. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or operating
leases based on the assessment of whether the lease
transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16,
the Group applies a single approach to recognise
and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for all leases. Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the lease term commencing from 1 January 2019,
the Group recognises depreciation (and impairment,
if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest accrued
on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.

The right-of-use assets were recognised based on the
carrying amount as if the standard had always been
applied, except for the incremental borrowing rate
when the Group applied the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position. This included HK$4.8
million recognised previously as prepaid land lease
payments on 31 December 2018 that were
reclassified as right-of-use assets.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
finance leases

The Group did not change the initial carrying
amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the
date of initial application for leases previously
classified as finance leases. Accordingly, the carrying
amounts of the right-of-use assets and the lease
liabilities at 1 January 2019 were the carrying
amounts of the recognised assets and liabilities (i.e.,
finance lease payables) measured under HKAS 17.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16
as at 1 January 2019 are as follows:

22 B BERBEZSH (&

(@ &)
R-ZBE-hE—A—BNHKESE
RZZE—NF—A—H  HEWNEBHER

HFEAFE16FAELNZENT

Increase/
(decrease)
#an, O )
HK$'000
FAT
Assets &E
Increase in right-of-use assets R FREE EIE N 7,868
Decrease in property, plant and equipment Y% - B KR ER L (117)
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments TE T b AE & IR (4,840)
Increase in total assets BEMAEEM 2,911
Liabilities afE
Increase in lease liabilities HEBGEEZ N 3,928
Decrease in finance lease payable MEHEERNFIERD (999)
Increase in total liabilities BEAEEM 2,929
Decrease in retained profits REE & ARk > 18
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to AT NF-A—BANHEEaEEN
the operating lease commitments as at 31 December T N\FH+_A=Z+—BNREHERE
2018 is as follows: HERWT -
HK$'000
FTAT
Operating lease commitments as at R-ZB-N\E+=-A=+—H 3,056
31 December 2018 E’meé#ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate RZZ—hE—H—A 5.12%
as at 1 January 2019 B D0 YR S SR R
Discounted operating lease commitments R-ZZ—-hE—H—H 2,929
as at 1 January 2019 HE ARG S B AR
Add: Commitments relating to leases m:BREADERRE 999
previously classified as finance leases HEHHE AR
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R=-Z-h&—H—H 3,928
opish=g=is
REKEERERAT

/3
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

74

DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) HK(FRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income

taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of
HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity
makes about the examination of tax treatments by
taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how
an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation,
the Group considered whether it has any uncertain
tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on its
intragroup sales. The Group determined that the
interpretation did not have any significant impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business®
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020. Early application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions made by the primary users. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and an
equity investment at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 2 —

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, investment properties, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 2.2% 10 4%
Leasehold improvements 33':5%
Plant and machinery 9% to 18%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% to 33'3%
Motor vehicles 30% to 33'5%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings and
leasehold improvements under construction, which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating lease)
which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use is accounted for as
follows:

(@ any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in profit or loss in the period
the change in use takes place; or

any resulting increase in the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss, to the extent that the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for that
property. The amount recognised in profit or loss
does not exceed the amount needed to restore the
carrying amount of the property to the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the property. Any remaining part of
the increase in the carrying amount is recognised in
other comprehensive income and increase the land
and building revaluation reserve within equity. On
subsequent disposal of the investment property, the
relevant portion of the land and building revaluation
reserve realised may be transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or
disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups
and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Properties, plant and equipment classified as
held for sale are not depreciated.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI")
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends

on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not

subject to impairment assessment.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

24 TESHHEME®)

1R B BT ()
R
BT ARE NI BT RN T AR ¢

BB KA T BN EEE (BHETA)
BEERAFENHBEERLRERERNE
ERTE - WAIRERBERE - EEERILHER
ERTSORER - e MBEREERPHER

HEERR FEFARMEERA B HEE (R
BRE)

RYFERE - AEBEERBERENEE
B ERERFMB LR EMBTHRA
T2 B IEIFEE B - ] B i E R IR
BN BEAEERAFESAREMEEEANK
BIRE - DRTRERN T AEEEE -

ZEVBEEN R R RBEBRB TS REINTA
BRRK - BWU A ERSERNEENR
R A REMARNEE MRS SRR SEAT B » X
ERBHERTER/EMBA - EEARRERE
AW E B 75 7 — B0 PR B PR 1S BUR R 2
BRIBRSN - RILIER T - FRENE A2 E UL
ARREE o HER A FEFARMEE WA RE
BRENZREFETE -

RIERVBEE

—APBEE (L (WER) —RUBEENE D
F—ARBEMBEEND) TEEN TEREK
R AEHER (B B NER B &2 & B ISR R 0 5
B)

e WEENSRELRENENTEH : X

s AKBECDEBEUYEENSRERENRE
M — M8 [ | 25T AR RS
MESREBENME=ZTNNER B
TRAEERER  R@QAREEBEZLE
ERBRE D B R ER - ok (b) NEEER
BEERNEREZEENBRI YRR K
B - BEEBZEENEGIE -

REKEEZERARAR
F3R 2019 85



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR M AL

371 December 2019 —ZF—h&E+—-A=+—H

24

36

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 180 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade and bills receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of printed circuit boards is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
printed circuit boards.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Determination of functional currency

In determining the functional currency of each entity of
the Group, judgement is required to determine and
consider the currency that mainly influences sales prices of
goods; the currency that mainly influences costs of
providing goods; the currency in which funds from
financing activities are generated; and the currency in
which receipts from operating activities are usually
retained, etc. The functional currency of each entity is
determined based on management’s assessment of the
primary economic environment in which the entities
operate. When the indicators are mixed and the functional
currency is not obvious, management uses its judgement
to determine the functional currency that most faithfully
represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.

Transfer of construction in progress to property,
plant and equipment

Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use. Thereafter, depreciation is
calculated on a straight line basis to write off the cost of
such property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. It requires management’s
judgement to determine when the project under
construction is substantially ready for its intended use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Measurement of unlisted equity investment at fair
value

The fair value of unlisted equity investment that is not
traded in an active market is estimated by management
with reference to valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer by using valuation technique
that requires various sources of information and
assumptions. The carrying amount of the Group’s unlisted
equity investment at 31 December 2019 was
HK$4,159,000 (2018: HK$4,119,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including;

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences; and

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December 2019 was HK$26,641,000 (2018:
HK$25,850,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement are given in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories to determine whether any write-
down of inventories to net realisable values is required
after considering, inter alia, the ageing analysis of the
Group’s inventories and subsequent sales made and
materials used. Write-down of inventories will be made
when the estimated net realisable values of inventories
decline below their carrying amounts. Net realisable value
of inventories is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
These estimates are made with reference to the current
market conditions and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of a similar nature.
Actual selling prices and saleability/usage of goods/
materials might be different from estimations and profit or
loss could be affected by differences in the estimations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Provision for income taxes

Provision for income tax is made based on the taxable
income for the period as determined by the Group. The
determination of taxable income involves the exercise of
judgement on interpretation of the relevant tax rules and
regulations. The amounts of income tax and hence profit
or loss could be affected by any interpretations and
clarifications which the tax authorities may issue from time
to time.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and bills receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EESTHHERME @)

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) {LEr REAEIE = (&)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills EWESESLENZEENEREEFER
receivables (continued) #(5)

The assessment of the correlation among historical BAEMERENH R FEAKCERIETESHEE
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and BBy BBERNTEIEANGEST - BHEEE
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is 18 4 58 S5 S0 1Y 585 ) % T SR A B A ST AR B BIURR ©
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast AEENIBEE S E BI85 & T8 B4 7 450 5k
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss BEERREREBLMS IAMBEREM - GEA
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also EBEEWESEZREREENTEREZEEE
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the BRI FERE W F 19 EE o

future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's

trade and bills receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the

financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEERE

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax in HAEBERTE R AN TS E TFHE D T8
respect of certain unremitted earnings of certain EFRELHET  KATEER AL RA]
subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China to Bk EZERMNMEAEETHIEaEE
the extent that the directors are of the opinion that it TR - BErERRANELEHIBAEL 3T
would be probable for distribution in the foreseeable TEEAENERHE - T EBEHNEA MG
future. Significant management judgement is required to WEWF27 o

determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities that should

be recognised. Further details are contained in note 27 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets FEIERIEESE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to RERIBEE R FERAMIBEBER  §iEs
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be ﬂﬁgﬁﬁggﬁ,‘u@;ﬁﬂEj{;ﬁ,‘r@;@%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ PABESY o &
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. DELFIBEETES R HEEBYEAEEY
Recognition of deferred tax assets primarily involves g%gzgg%ﬁﬁ%\m&%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ o T AR
management judgement and estimations regarding the CEERIBEEESBETIRIER KR ERR GF
taxable profits of the entities in which the losses arose. R REEA B RKTE  ERKRKHIEETES
Significant management judgement is required to B - VEREAE IR AL o

determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be

recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of

future taxable profits together with future tax planning

strategies.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EEHIER

The Group focuses primarily on the manufacture and sale z]x%lﬁf\iﬁqigiﬁr;zﬁ/\%zz_&%%mﬂ?&&%
of printed circuit boards during the year. Information IR o r&qz]&ﬁgz womsheE AERMEE (B

reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker,
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance

BIR @E&i\%fﬁuﬂé)%qﬂﬂ$%lé’]ﬁ %%@
X8 ARAEERSAER

assessment, focuses on the operating results of the Group BAFE BRI AT 2 2R - it - jﬁﬁigﬂj K ;}ggﬁ
as a whole as the Group's resources are integrated and no *l o
discrete operating segment financial information is
available. Accordingly, no operating segment information
is presented.
REKBERARAA
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

4,

Mainland China H B A
Europe M
Hong Kong HE
North America JEEM

Asia (except Mainland China and

Hong Kong)
Africa FEM
Oceania KAEM
South America mEM

SM(TEEFEAEEEE)

BESTER (#)
(a) ZREIMBEFHWE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
273,300 327,809
158,440 168,938
13,618 20,411
34,848 52,872
156,337 165,022
13,754 30,850
106 96
5 8
650,408 766,006

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers who placed the orders.

(b) Non-current assets

LW EERTIER T ETENEPE
Hb, o

(b) FARBEE

B
B it

Hong Kong
Mainland China

2019 2018
Sl - =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBT SR
3,072 1,717
393,298 428,320
396,370 430,037

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes a financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue is set out below:

HERBEEERENEEMELS
5] BABER-ERAVFEFARGMEZE
Was B 5 B E R ERAEE -

FHETEEFHNESR
KEEETEEPHME (EAEEE 10% 3 IA
B)#EHmT

2019 2018
el - =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Customer A ZEA 227,074 237,112
Customer B ZFB 83,779 95,375
310,853 332,487
98 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W= - Httl AR W&

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZBA

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHEBAESR
The Group's entire revenue from the goods REB AR EBHNEYIRAR K —RFH
transferred is recognised at a point in time. BhHER -

(i) Performance obligations (i) BIEXK
Information about the Group's performance AR EBEREITEBHERMOT
obligations is summarised below:
Sale of printed circuit boards HE R EER
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery BAIEER TR EERBZEX - WS
of the printed circuit boards and payment is generally FEFEERMEET30E90 BREIE(—K
due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for BIEN FRIBRF R PRRIN) o

new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as g~ A A Rz TE AT ¢
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Revenue from contracts with KHEEFAHNZWA
customers
Sale of goods HEEM 650,408 766,006
Other income Hug A
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 598 568
Rental income HEWA 312 200
Government grants” BT AL~ 9,058 9,659
Others Hib 4 184
9,972 10,611
Gains &
Fair value gains on investment properties & W% 7 A T E M= 1,387 2,001
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEME - BENEKE
plant and equipment BEREN g 306 310
Sales of scraps SHE R o 2,290 966
Foreign exchange gain, net PE 5 I & 558 3,548 4,445
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve 344 — fEIff1 B A R #6352
upon deregistration of a subsidiary P R B 5,333 -
Others Hip 14 -
12,878 7,722
22,850 18,333
A Government grants have been received from certain government A EEE TP EIBUT 5P 8 M BUT AL - ARIBAERE
authorities of the PRC in recognition of the Group's efforts in BEBEHLRERRNEESFENE S -
environmental awareness and protection and technological
development.

REfREEZERAERLF
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

6. BRBIADEAR

AEENBRBADEMEMER,GEA)

2019 2018
=L T )\&F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i F#ET FHET
Cost of inventories sold"@ EEFERAE"® 502,018 587,117
Minimum lease payments under KEHENRERS
operating leases - 1,715
Auditor's remuneration Z SR & 2,084 2,105
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB MEREITE
equipment 13 27,993 28,070
Deprecation of right-of-use assets FRABEEENE 15(b) 2,048 -
Amortisation of land lease payments 10 FH B SRIE 8 15(a) = 249
Employee benefit expense® (including EERMMALZC(BRIEFEE
directors’ and chief executive’s RESMEEREE
remuneration as disclosed in note 8): TBABME) :
Wages, salaries, allowances, bonuses, TI& %o - 2eh-
commission and benefits in kind TEAT ﬁﬁ&@%ﬁu 94,221 107,249
Pension scheme contributions BIREFHEIHR
(defined contribution schemes) (EFEHRETED 215 213
Other employee benefits HEiEERF 8,654 9,639
103,090 117,101
Research and development costs* 5% N 35 R AR AN # 7,752 11,261
Write-off of items of property, plant M - BENMREIEE
and equipment s 13 -
Reversal of write-down of inventories to B TEER
net realisable value” AJ IR HE" (1,240)
Fair value gains on investment properties &éﬁ%% N HER S 5 (2,001)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of 5 ERGIA K
trade and bills receivables EWEERE,
CRE#RE) 19 898
Impairment of other receivables* H fth E Y R IB BB * -
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BEREE
plant and equipment* IHE 2z Wz 5 (310)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve 5T & — B B A AIRF &R 2
upon deregistration of a subsidiary* FE R B 8 * 5 (5,333) -
Foreign exchange differences, net* M N R R R (3.548) (4,445)
* These gains are included in “Other income and gains” and the * WA EEE WA TEMA Rk MER

losses are included in “General and administrative expenses”, as
appropriate, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e Part of the employee benefit expense is included in “Cost of e
inventories sold” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reversal of write-down of inventories to net realisable value is A

included in “Cost of inventories sold” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

# Research and development costs are included in “General and

administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

Annual Report 2019
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®MEHR
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Interest on: AN BIERFE :
Bank loans and trust receipt loans RITERMETBIEE R 5,944 7,936
Finance leases mEHEE - 163
Lease liabilities HERE 131 =
6,075 8,099
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTFEITHRAEHM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RRE A PTEE 5 EmAR AN EmRALD) - HELQ
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of AEAIEE383(1)@) * (b) * (QRMERESDE (H
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), BEENRAM RIS _BRENFEESR
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong FE2ITHMABSHMEIIOT

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Hong Kong
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-NF —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Fees EH 1,428 1,428
Other emoluments: E A E

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R MEYRET 4,592 4,820

Commission e 4,486 6,598

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIEF IR 18 18

9,096 11,436

10,524 12,864

BEEEERERAT
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEITBRAEHFME
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BYFFITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FARNBIENTESE2ERUT ¢
during the year were as follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —Z=-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming 8 KA A 204 204
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu [GES 204 204
Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 21 82 55 A& 204 204
612 612
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAEEN B IENTTE F 2 H A B
independent non-executive directors during the year (ZZ—N\F 8|
(2018: Nil).
Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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EERFETBRAEHM )
(b) BTES FUTESRERTHEA
g

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.

REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive
director and the chief executive

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind Commission contributions remuneration
Ec = 5254 Efhe
ER ENFE e FTEIER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET TET THET
2019 —2-hE
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Chan Wing Yin* BRBRE* =
Mrs. Chan Yung BRELT =
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BREX T AE 4,486
4,486
Non-executive director: FHITES
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong BRENRAE
2018 —E-N\E
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Chan Wing Yin* RSB S+ 204 1,900 - - 2,104
Mrs. Chan Yung MELZ+ 204 1,484 - - 1,688
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BB 204 1,081 6,598 18 7,901
612 4,465 6,598 18 11,693
Non-executive director: FHTES
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong BREN A 204 355 - - 559
816 4,820 6,598 18 12,252
* Mr. Chan Wing Yin is also the chief executive officer of the FRECBE SR ETMABARRITHRAES

Company.

FABEBLFBEESATETRARHR
ZRFABHRRITMHFM T —N\F - &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

REfREEZERAERLF
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IEREFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FANhEHEaTMNEEEE=2(Z—\F:
three directors (2018: three directors), details of whose ZR)EE HFMFBERR EXHIES - 82T
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the ME(ZE—N\F : WE) &= HES (BEER
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2018: ANRAEFEMIFEETHAB) RFRNETBFE
two) highest paid employees who are neither a director IR (N

nor the chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & « ZBI R EWFIZR 2,725 2,500
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT = 190
Pension scheme contributions RIS 36 36
2,726

The number of non-director and non-chief executive HFHERAUTHENZSHMES GEEENIE

highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within FETBAER) ABEHTINT -
the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEHE
2018
—E)N\F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T = 1,500,000 % 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 ;8 7L % 2,000,000 % 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T % 2,500,000 %8 7T -
2
The non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FEFRIIFETHRAENESFMEE TR
employees are also members of senior management of the REBRRERENKE -
Group.
1 04 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R R B

31 December 2019 —ZE—hFE+=-A=1+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FRiH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BERFERIIRFRNNEBE LB ERT
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits A E16.5% (ZF—/\F : 16.5%)sHe M
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one HEAEERN—FNB AR  ZARAFE A
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under —T-N\F - NEREEEREBOMAR
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the FIFSEHBEEGHENER - ZMBRAAEE
year of assessment 2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 2,000,000( ZF—\F : B) BT ERTURT
(2018: Nil) of assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 128.25% W Bl R A B - H &R FE R T s W Al %
8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% BIBTEREHT o H it [E 69 FEER T i ) Bl 18
16.5%. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been ERBAEEEEMERNEERNRNITH R
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions Ho
in which the Group operates.
The provision for land appreciation tax has been estimated T H AT 2 BB R A R BUE G R AR B R
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC 2R TEIEL ST o THIRERIZIZEEERRR
laws and regulations. Land appreciation tax has been ETARBRAR  REEHER ZBEELR
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation 1o
value, with certain allowable deductions.
All subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are FRANEBRFPBEKLOTEHBRRER
subject to PRC corporate income tax at a standard rate of 25% (= ZF— )\ : 25%) IWIZEFH R
25% (2018: 25%) during the year, except for a subsidiary EAMEH - EAREE—RHNEARERBEAM
of the Group which qualified as a High and New REmMBMEENER - RENRRIEHF E
Technology Enterprise in Mainland China and a lower PRC PEMEBHEI15% (ZF—/\F : 15%) #F -
corporate income tax rate of 15% (2018: 15%) has been
applied for the year.
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Current — Hong Kong BIER — &%
Charge for the year FARATH 1,050 481
Overprovision in prior years BT EBRERE (C) (28)
Current — Mainland China BIER — AR
Charge for the year FAZH 7,064 10,119
Overprovision in prior years BAEFEHERE (857) (753)
Deferred (note 27) EIE (F5E27) 4,938 13,338
Total tax charge for the year FRFIAL L4 12,155 23,157

REKEEZERARAR
372019
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31 December 2019 —ZE—hFE+=-A=1+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for Hong Kong in which
the principal place of business of the Company and certain
of its major subsidiaries is located, to the tax charge at the
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate,
are as follows:

Profit before tax B B AT
Tax at the Hong Kong REBEREMRTERIA

statutory tax rate
Effect of different tax rates for h S EE A TR X

specific entities in the PRC TE

Adjustment in respect of current 5t i@ 7 2SI A BRI R TE 49
tax of previous periods R

Income not subject to tax BRI Z WA

Expenses not deductible for tax A F0% 2 X H

Tax losses utilised from previous {5 FA 381 BAfE 2 R 1B &8
periods

Effect of withholding tax at 5% 7<= & /b B fff B8 A ) 3t
on the distributable profits of Al 73 R F) L FR 5% B

the Group'’s PRC subsidiary HERIBIRMIAEE
0%

Tax losses not recognised RERWIBEE

Additional deduction for research fiff 7% % 3% & A A58 Y1 AL
and development costs

Land appreciation tax TR ER

Others EHAftb

Tax charge at the Group’s RAEEERRETER
effective rate W

1 06 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019

10. IR (&)
BAARRETFEEWBAD A E B L IE B
RAE 0 T R R 5 R B B AT R FI B
TE R BB RS B RIE YR - A RBAR
E(EEFERE) BB R NEESRSIMT -

2019 2018
—g-n —E—N\F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

FH FHT

68,056 81,550

11,229 16.5 13,456 16.5
(935) (1.4) (1,294) (1.6)
(897) (1.3) (781) (1.0

(1,353) (2.0) (372) (0.5

1,183 1.7 540 0.7
(384) (0.5

13,753 16.9

(2,561) 3.1

964 1.2

(164) (0.2)

23,157 28.4
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11.

12.

DIVIDEND

11.

Final — Nil (2018: HK6.0 cents)
per ordinary share

REMEE — BREBERET
—Z—NF :6.08)

RE
2019 2018
—2-NF —F-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FATT
14,400

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$55,901,000
(2018: HK$58,393,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 240,000,000 (2018: 240,000,000) in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 in respect of a dilution as the Group had
no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during these
years.

12.

EXEETEEMBE_T-NF+_A=+—
B EIRMN RS -

RRAEEESEEAARLGERER

FRARAEBEZFEABRGZERELRR
FEEIREAR A EBRERFTEARGFR
Y 1 55,901,000 7% 70 ( == — J\4F : 58,393,000
BT)RMAFEFEEETEBRMEFTS
240,000,000 f% ( — = — J\ 4 : 240,000,000 % )
& o

HRAEERBE_T-NFR-_FT-N\F+=
A=+—BLFEYEAEERERELDH
TEBER RUBREEEINREFERIZ
BREXBNERIELAE -

REKEEZERARAR
372019

107




Notes to Financial Statements
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—F-NF+=A=+—A8

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2019 “E2-0f

t=B=t-8

At1January 2019 (restated) R =F—-AE—A—A

(%3]) :
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation Zithe
Net carying amount KEEE

At31December 2018, netof ~ RZF-N\E

accumulated depreciation T-A=+-8"
BB Z5IE
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 SRAAE B K328
F165MTE
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RIE-NE
—A—R(&EE5)

Additions HE

Redlassification to assets ENHRERELEL
held for sale (note 22) BE(2)

Transfers &%

Transfer from deposits for EYRBENE BER
purchases of property, plantand ~ REER KRS
equipment (note 16) (i 16)

Disposals e

Write-off ik

Depreciation provided during ERHELR
the year

Exchange realignment ERH%

At31December 2019, netof ~ H=F-AE+-A

accumulated depreciation

=t-B EHREZH
&

At 31 December 2019: RZE-NE+ZA
o =
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation ZifinE
Net carrying amount REFE

108

Land and
buildings

1HRET
HK$'000
Fn

197,881
(34,223)

163,658

163,658

163,658

(3,594)

(7,007)
(3,482)

149,575

186,821
(37,246)

149,575

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019

Construction
in progress

ERIE
HK$'000
TR

68,286

68,286
823

(1,517)

67,287

67,287

67,287

13. 1% BERRE

Leasehold
improvements

HK$'000
TR

19,014
(15,451)

3,563

(1,265)
(12)

19,472
(16,373)

3,099

Plant and
machinery

HER#E
HK$'000

Fix

321,710
(163,481)

158,229

158,229

158,229
1914

4,306
(4,922)
(33)

(17,852)
(3,536)

138,104

297,180
(159,076)

138,104

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
e Er
RERRRE
HKS'000
AT

23,407
(20,226)

3,181

(1,157)
(72)

24311
(20,976)

3335

Motor
vehicles

RE
HKS'000
Fin

7402
(5,760)

1,642

7497
(5,941)

1,556

Total
@zt

HK$'000
FEn

637,700
(239.141)

398,559

398,676

(117)

398,559
5,390

(3,594)

4,306
(4.957)
(58)

(27,993)
(8,697)

362,956

602,568

(239,612)

362,956
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y% BEERRXE®

(continued)

Furniture,
landand  Construction Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings in progress  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
(8 - ElE
THRET ERIR BEEE HEREE  XERRE & h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr THT TER TAR TAR TAR Thr
31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+ZA=t+-H
At 1 January 2018: RZZ-N\$-A-8:
Cost KA 207,500 71,688 18,636 307,786 23,983 9,010 638,603
Accumulated depreciation 2itmE (28,274) - (14,802) (154,498) (19,802) (7677) (225,053)
Net carrying amount REFE 179,226 71,688 3,834 153,288 4,181 1333 413,550
At 1 January 2018, net of RZZ-N\§-A-RH"
accumulated depreciation BAREHTE 179,226 71,688 3,834 153,288 4,181 1333 413550
Additions BE - 388 945 22,345 397 1,739 25814
Transfers g% - (497) 291 206 - - -
Transfer from deposits for EUARENE BER
purchases of items of property,  REERERS
plant and equipment (note 16) ([ 16) - - - 7342 - - 7342
Disposals = (82) - - - - - (82)
Depreciation provided ERFERE
during the year (7,520) - (1337) (16,681) (1,241) (1,291) (28,070)
Exchange realignment B AE (7,966) (3,293) (170) (8.271) (156) (22) (19,878)
At 31 December 2018, netof ~ RZZT—/\F
accumulated depreciation +-f=+-8"
BB R 163,658 68,286 3,563 158,229 3,181 1,759 398,676
At 31 December 2018: RZZ2-/\§
TZA=+-8:
Cost R 197,881 68,286 19,014 321,710 23,407 9,790 640,088
Accumulated depreciation 2HIE (34,223) - (15,451) (163,481) (20,226) (8,031) (241,412)
Net carrying amount REEE 163,658 68,286 3,563 158,229 3,181 1,759 398,676

At 31 December 2018, the net carrying amounts of the
Group's property, plant and equipment held under finance
leases included in the total amounts of plant and
machinery and a motor vehicle at 31 December 2018 were
HK$12,636,000 and HK$117,000, respectively.

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings and construction in progress with an
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$185,652,000 were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 25).

RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H iFAZZE—NF
FTZA=T—BRERERRTERE I AE
EREREEERB2ME - BERJEREF
B 51/512,636,000%8 7T K% 117,000 8 7T °

R-B-NF+-A=+—8 A£EEFTHE
Tt EBFREREIRLAEB FES
185,652,000 7L 2R - LAUERAEEER D
—RRIRTTERE (FIFE25) °

REKEEZERARAR
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY=E
2019 2018
—B-NF —E)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMEREE 25,850 25,074
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NEERERFEE (MiEe)

(note 6) 1,387 2,001
Exchange realignment PE 53, 58 % (596) (1,225)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+t-—A=+—H/EAEE 26,641 25,850
The Group’s investment properties consist of residential AEBNKREMERETENTEWER -8
properties and a commercial property in the PRC. ERWE -

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 REENEREMER _ZE—NFT+_A=1+—
December 2019 based on valuations performed by Vincorn AREEBYEXSERGHEEML RN
Consulting and Appraisal Limited, an independent HERA AT ZME26,641,0008T(=F
professionally qualified valuer, at HK$26,641,000 (2018: — \fF 25,850,000 7C) E¥ffh{E - BEFEKE
HK$25,850,000). Each year, the Group's chief financial ERHLER  AEEBIEEE R EIMNEGERM A
officer decides, after approval from the directors, to - LBEREEREMENIINIEELE - |
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the BERBEMSAHR 28 BUERELHKE
external valuations of the Group's investment properties. EREN - BEFERTTFHRFEYEHRE
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, HBITEHER  AEEFKAESHERRK
independence and whether professional standards are HES LA REGEMIENR

maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuations are
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties consisting of a commercial HERADEREEYEEARNIREMERSE
property and residential properties are leased to third HOMETE=7 > FEMREND HAM B @K
parties under operating leases, further summary details of PHEE15 o

which are included in note 15 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, an investment property of the RZZE-—AF+-A=+—8 2£EBEME
Group with a carrying amount of HK$6,473,000 (2018: 746,473,000 7T(=ZF—/\F : 6,448,000 7T)
HK$6,448,000) was pledged to secure general banking ZHEEEMEDRIBIEARNSEBER —KIR
facilities granted to the Group (note 25). ITER R (H7E25)
1 1 O Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYE(E)
Fair value hierarchy REEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRIPREEREMEN DT EFEER

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

Fair value measurement using
AN THABSNAFEH B

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RERT S ERTEHE BERFIEE
HE BARE BWAYE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—14%) (E=#%) (B=H) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET FTET TR
Recurring fair value FUTEERLERHE
measurement for: NEERE
At 31 December 2019 RN-B—-hE
+-A=+—-H
Commercial property [ElikES 6,473 6,473
Residential properties FEME 20,168 20,168
26,641 26,641
At 31 December 2018 NZE-NF
+-A=+—H
Commercial property ElEEES - - 6,448 6,448
Residential properties TEME - - 19,402 19,402
- - 25,850 25,850
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value TR F—REE —FEEZENFERNZE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no MR E-RTEEAXEL (22— \F:
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil). ) o
RESEERBERATE 1 1 1

F3R 2019
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. BEYWHE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT ERBR(E)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised PBEEATFEEBRTFE =N AFEFENY
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: Bk -
Commercial Residential
property properties
BmAYE TEEYE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—-N\F—A—BNKREE 6,484 18,590
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RERPERN A FEFAB RS
recognised in profit or loss SRR 272 1,729
Exchange realignment PE 5, X (308) (917)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+—_A=+—8BxX
and 1 January 2019 —E-NF—-HA-HHEEE 6,448 19,402
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RERPERE A T EFER G
recognised in profit or loss VR RE 170 1,217
Exchange realignment B 3 F (145) (457)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—AFE+-_A=+—HH
FREE 6,473 20,168

1 1 2 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE (@)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEERE)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and T AEEMEGMEMANGERTREZS
the key inputs to the valuation of the investment AR E -
properties:
Significant
Investment properties Fair value Valuation unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy technique input Range
rEBREN EXRTAEE
REW* RNRERER fRE R A & =
Commercial property Level 3 Sales comparison Estimated price per RMB26,533 to
in Mainland China method square metre RMB32,855
(2018: RMB28,009
to RMB31,000)
TR B 2 7 R 3 E=1 SHE LBV BEF 7K AR® 26,533 LE
EEHER AR¥32,8557C
(ZZT—N\F:
AR#28,009E
AR¥31,0007T)
Residential properties Level 3 Sales comparison  Estimated price per RMB40,949 to
in Mainland China method square metre RMB45,227
(2018: RMB37,500
to RMB40,887)
AR B R 2 (W% F=H HELEUA ¥ 7K AR 40,949 LE
HEHER AR 45,227 7T
(ZE—N\F:
AR 37,500 T
AR¥40,887 1)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated price per
square metre in isolation would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. The investment properties are valued using the
sales comparison method having regard to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market. The
valuations take into account the characteristics of the
properties which included the location, size, floor level,
year of completion and other factors collectively.

BT RKMEFHER O E B EE N, OR ) 1§
BHREWEN N TERBEM OFD) < RE
WA ELBOASE - EPEENEETISA
HUEBWREHERS - (HESBBEEMEN
EREBHERLE K BE  BRFOHAR
HiA%E -

REKEEZERARAR
FE5R 2819 1 13



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR M AL

31 December 2019 —ZF—h#E+—-A=+—H

15. LEASES 15. #HE

The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA

The Group has lease contracts for certain properties and a TEEFBEETMERAENHEESH o —RIE
vehicle. Lump sum payments were made upfront to NHRBEEXN THEAABISHEE LM - 1HH
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods 504 - ERBERZE T HHSKRAEARFES
of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under NEARIE - ETYHEBENHERRABT AN
the terms of these land leases. Leases of certain properties F-MAIEHERRARSF - —MMs ' ~5E
generally have lease terms of 2 years, while a motor vehicle TMEMAKBZINTHEBERSHASEE -

has a lease term of 5 years. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group.

(a)

(b)

114

Prepaid land lease payments (before () FENTHHEERBE(ZZ-—NF-A—
1 January 2019) B Al)
HK$'000
T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—-A—AKHEE 5,325
Recognised in profit or loss during the year FRERDER (249)
Exchange realignment VE 5% (236)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+_A=+—HEAE 4,840
Current portion included in prepayments, deposits 5t AFEFRIE « 2 & K& H b el 18
and other receivables B BN EAER > (241)
Non-current portion FERNERER 7> 4,599
Right-of-use assets (b) EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use RERN - RNEBREBEEERAIENL R
assets and the movements during the year are as -
follows:
Prepaid
land lease Motor
payments Properties vehicle Total
]
HEFIE /JES "E ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FAT FHET FET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HA—H 4,840 2,911 117 7,868
Additions NE - 1,326 - 1,326
Derecognition BUHER - (387) - (387)
Depreciation charge mERY (240) (1,691) (117) (2,048)
Exchange realignment P& 5 S (102) - - (102)
As at 31 December 2019 AZZ—Hh4
+=-A=+—H 4,498 2,159 - 6,657

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE @)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEEREBEA (B)
(c) Lease liabilities (0 HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the RER - HEAENRRERESHOT
movements during the year are as follows:
2019 2018
LRl T \F
=== Finance lease
liabilities payables
BEHRSE
HESE FERTRIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—H—HBMEREE 3,928 7,593
New leases FHE 1,326 -
Derecognition BB TR (401) -
Accretion of interest recognised FRERERFEIE M
during the year 131 163
Payments R (2,794) (6,814)
Exchange realignment I 5 J8 B = 57
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HHERAEE 2,190 999
Analysed into: BTAIBIEDS
Current portion ENERER Y 436
Non-current portion JEBNERER 563
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities (2018: finance MEAGR(ZE—N\F: pEHEENK
lease payables) is disclosed in note 37 to the financial 18) MY B M7 7O B 75 R 3R Y 5 37 4% 5% -
statements.
(d) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (d) SHEERBZEINSIBOT -
to leases are as follows:
2019
—E-hEF
HK$°000
THET
Interest on lease liabilities HEABMNE 131
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENEL T 2,048
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBF R 4258 2,179
(e) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash (e) HELRERERBEEWARFBNEES
outflows relating to leases that have not yet RIRIE &7 H BRI B REKM T 31(b) ©

commenced are disclosed in note 31(b) to the
financial statements.

REKEEZERARAR
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15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
consisting of a commercial property and nine residential
properties in the PRC under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$312,000 (2018:
HK$200,000), details of which are included in note 5 to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-

15. HE @)

AEBEEBHEA
AEERBELEHETERPRAEEREY
2(M314) BRE-—EBEVERAEAEZED
¥ - ZSHEZER-—REXBEINRES -
KEBRFANEERESUAE312,0008 T
(ZZ—//\% :200,000%87T) ' BRAFIHEHAH
TEMRMIFES ©

RZFB-NF+-_A=+—8 AEEREEE
TP 2 NE REHAC 218 B 1 R R B R Y e R

cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: BRIRMEERNROT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
With one year —FER 519 91
After one year but within two years —FUEEMFEUA 89 -
608 91
16. DEPOSITS FOR PURCHASES OF ITEMS OF 16. BEYX BERRIBRENES
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
ks THET THET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—AMKREE 616 6,108
Additions NE 3,692 1,934
Transfer to property, plant B EYE - BEREE
and equipment 13 (4,306) (7,342)
Exchange realignment bE N R (2) (84)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ = A=+—HMKEE = 616

The carrying amount represented deposits paid for
purchases of certain machinery and equipment for the
Group’s manufacturing operation.

17. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FREEEBES THEARE (HARBEESZ
B2R)ANES -

17. BRAVPEFARMGEERENVBEE

2018
—EN\F
HK$'000
TAT

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value

BAFEIERNIE EHBRERE

4,119

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers the investment to be strategic in nature.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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18. INVENTORIES 18. #E

2019 2018

—E-NF —T)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT TAT

Raw materials R 20,194 18,938

Work in progress sk La) 10,612 10,802

Finished goods X 21,122 31,859

51,928 61,599

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. ESEWFIEREKRERE

2019 2018

—E-NF —T—)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT THETT

Trade receivables B 5 e FIE 197,743 222,699
Bills receivable IR 22,260 36,844

220,003 259,543

Impairment TRIE (3,557) (3,839)
216,446 255,704
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly REFHEEEPHZ KR ETERIBES -
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in EES/BETELRERIN o REBBE R TEER
advance may be required. The Group maintains a defined & O RERNEERYEREOHNE A AEK—
credit policy and credit periods are usually granted ranging EEBMEEE - AEBEA S R EEREKS
from one to four months from the month-end of date of B EBRER  LESRECERAKR - SRE
invoice to customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict HETFHEOEES c TR LB R AL
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit CEBERSIERENEERESZZ TR
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior BB MAEEVESAEEEDER NEER
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact WEGHZ SR 208 & e N E S A T
that the Group’s trade and bills receivables related to a R Gk E A S B B o B 5 MU IE & E U

large amount of diversified customers, there is no BYE A RIS o

significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade and bills receivables. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at RSP IR - B S Lk R M A g B
N = 79 =t PER X AR &= I~

the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date e , PN i
and net of loss allowance, is as follows: B R PR S IR B R MO BR R S AT RUSIAN T -

2019 2018

—E-N\F —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Within one month —@AAR 84,425 95,114
One to two months —ZMEA 54,338 76,157
Two to three months MZE =18 A 47,349 56,923
Over three months BBl =1EA 30,334 27,510

216,446 255,704

REKEEZERARAR
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. EFRUNREREBRER (&)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of BIEWFTIEREKREZENEERESESEHT
trade and bills receivables are as follows: m
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January »w—HA—H 3,839 3,082
Impairment loss/(reversal of AEEE(BERE
impairment loss), net (note 6) E18) F58 (Msxe) (211) 898
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 B (71) (141)
At the end of year FER 3,557 3,839
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting REBR B WE AN AR EEEETRED
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit I DGt EREEERSE - BEXDHERZEA
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for BHEUBEBEANE D AR K &R EE
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss TE o RETHE A ERM AR NEER - BHERH
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted BUARRREBARSEBABESEH - BRIGH
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and RARFEEGRGETRANSE R BB FHER -
supportable information that is available at the reporting —MME - B HEWGRIE R RN R N8 SR
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of —ETLAMEE - BN BIEIT IIERTIRR ©

future economic conditions. Generally, trade and bills
receivables are written off if past due for more than one
year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk T X E N H AR EERES AR EE S YR
exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a BEREREEAHNEERBROHER
provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-h&E+=-H=+—H
Past due
ekl
Credit-
Less than 1to3 3to12 impaired
Current 1 month months months receivables Total
FERE
B SW1EAR 1Z3{8R 3Z12{8A i e a5
Expected credit loss rate  FEER{EEE
B 0.16% 0.19% 0.18% 1.19% 100% 1.62%
Gross carrying amount BERTHE(E
(HK$'000) (F%71) 187,902 24,916 3,325 673 3,187 220,003
Expected credit losses HEEEES
(HK$'000) (F&1) 309 47 6 8 3,187 3,557
1 1 8 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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19. BEZEBRREARERERE (@)
R=B—NF+=A=+-8

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
As at 31 December 2018

Past due
1 HA
Credit-
Less than 1t03 3t0 12 impaired
Current 1 month months months  receivables Total
EERE
AR AM1EAR 1E31MA 3EN12@EA EkREE &t
Expected credit loss rate FEHIEEE
BE 0.30% 0.21% 0.50% 3.68% 100% 1.48%
Gross carrying amount BEREE
(HK$'000) (F%&mT) 218,697 31,692 4,996 1,113 3,045 259,543
Expected credit losses EHEERE
(HK$'000) (A1) 661 67 25 41 3,045 3,839
20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FANRIE - REREMEWRE
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHET
Current ENHA
Prepayments TR IR 2,252 8,055
Deposits and other receivables 24 N H b fEUg 18 508 418
2,760 8,473
Non-current JEBNER
Deposits e 296

st A R B TS A R R AV RC B 0 B IR
FIENBHRTIEEE - R_B-NAFR-T-N
FH-A=1t—0 BEEFRIGE/EM -

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no history of default
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

REfREEZERAERLF
372019
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21.

120

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH

RERRESEEY  REEAFRRR
PREIHR

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FaE FET FHET
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEES 129,434 135,876
Pledged deposits and restricted cash B #Ef7FE &L 2R $13R & 31,433 31,621
160,867 167,497
Less: Ve
Pledged time and bank deposits ETRITRME 2B KT
for certain banking facilities FHNIBITER 25 (30,967)
Pledged bank deposits for certain  # T a5 2 & 348
bills payable H|ITHER 23 (156)
Restricted cash ZREIRS 98)
Cash and cash equivalents for the  FEZS B BERREMS 2
purpose of the consolidated ReRREEEY
statement of financial position 129,434 135,876

At 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances, and
pledged deposits and restricted cash of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to
HK$55,201,000 (2018: HK$38,986,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances, pledged
deposits and restricted cash are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Restricted cash of the Group represents a special fund
granted by a PRC government authority and deposited into
a designated bank account in relation to the Group’s
purchases of certain energy saving and sewage treatment
machines. Such fund will only be released to the Group’s
use upon fulfilment of certain attaching conditions and is
not immediately available for use in the Group’s business.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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22. ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) CLASSIFIED AS HELD 22. Z7ERFELENEE (AEF)
FOR SALE

Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited (“YT Industrial”) is a wholly- ARAN—ME2ENBRARBEZE(RE)EES
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong RAR(REEX])REBFMKZINERA
Kong with limited liability. As at 31 December 2019, the Bl RZE-—NF+A=+—0 X&EE—H
Group had been undergoing discussion with an H—ZEIE=HAELEREERETH
independent third party on the possible disposal of YT o Al EREE X BN —THIER TR —&
Industrial. The possible disposal of YT Industrial was part of D ZBEAAEEE - B E =AM
a framework agreement, entered into between the Group MARFRBERIFLERAREZTEREEFEE M
and an independent third party, in relation to the urban BN o BIRZER W - MR EEETREN®
renewal project located at the Group's factory in Pingshan EHREN—FATHEE - Bt - R-ZT—NH
District, Shenzhen, the PRC. Based on the framework F+-A=1+—H BEEEEENAGBEN
agreement, the possible disposal of YT Industrial was AHERFIELHE - FEF2HARFAHAZE
expected to be completed within one year from the end of —NFE+—AT=H®HRE -
the reporting period. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
of YT Industrial were reclassified as held-for-sale as at 31
December 2019. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 13 November 2019.
The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held RZFB-—NF+ZA=+—HIEABELE
for sale as at 31 December 2019 were as follows: MEEEENBEEBNMT :
Note HK$°000
B aE FHET
Property, plant and machinery ME - BE NMERE 13 3,594
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{H3IE - 14 K H b fE U 7018 726
Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEED 1,134
Total assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHENBEE 5,454
Other payables and accruals H b T FIE K& T B 117
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DA EREMRER 117
Net assets EE#E 5,337

REKEEZERARAR
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23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23. EZRAREREBENERE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables B SRR 109,291 122,100
Bills payable FERT R 201 2,873
109,492 124,973
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the RIBEHR - BHRNFIERENZERERSR
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is HHIMBRER ST T
as follows:
2019 2018
=E-NF —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Within three months =@AN 93,403 108,442
Three to six months =ZXEA 14,929 15,734
Over six months Bims~EA 1,160 797
109,492 124,973
The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing ESRENFIEAEER TetERERERH
and are normally settled within three months from the H A BRI =ER NN -
month-end of the date of invoice.
At 31 December 2019, bills payable with an aggregate RZE-NF+_A=+—0 KELEAR
carrying amount of HK$201,000 (2018: HK$776,000) 201,000/ (=& — \4F : 776,000/5 1) By &
were secured by pledged bank deposits of HK$201,000 BB A 201,000/87L (ZZF—/\4F : 156,000
(2018: HK$156,000). BL) MBI RIRITE AR ©
1 22 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HhENSRIEREFTER
2018
—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR

Current BN HA

Other payables Hoh T IR 22,175 25,724

Accruals fEEHE R 41,427 48,465

Deferred income” EIEU A 1,618 1,060

65,220 75,249

Non-current FEENHA

Deferred income” BN 12,086 9,854

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HiERFRIERTE - FEHBMRA=MEA -

average term of three months.

" Deferred income mainly represented (i) special fund of " BEWAEEIE : () PRBUITE BRERSKER RS
HK$4,069,000 (2018: HK$4,529,000) granted by a PRC government T 7 R R4 4,069,000 7T ( =2 —)\4E : 4,529,000
authority in relation to the construction of a sewage treatment EIT) ¢ (i) B Bt A SR B B T AR RS KR IR
facility; (ii) a special fund of HK$265,000 (2018: HK$287,000) WEE T 2K E£265000%F (=% — \F:
granted by a PRC government authority in relation to the Group's 287,000/ L)  ZIEELEWAIZBBEYE - BE MR
purchase of certain energy saving and sewage treatment machines. B AR A FPRIBERER L)V TEBFER
The deferred income is recognised in profit or loss over the expected RAEEBESE THERANKSE T Z2ERESD
useful lives of the relevant property, plant and equipment; and (iii) a 3,030,000 T (ZF—/\F : &) ©
special fund of HK$3,030,000 (2018: Nil) granted by a PRC
government authority in relation to the Group’s purchase of certain
machineries for technology advancement.

RESEERBERATE
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! London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR")

R ERTT R %47 S ([LIBOR])

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. FFESRITER
2019 2018
k- Sy K2 —E-N\E
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (p.a.) Maturity?  HK$'000 rate (p.a.) Maturity? HK$'000
EHERIE BHA? TEn BNERE E =g ThL
Current BV
Secured trust receipt loans due for repayment LIBOR' + 1.4% to 1.5% 35,656 LIBOR' + 1.5% 2019 52,821
within one year® or HIBOR? + 1.4% to 1.5% or HBOR + 1.5%
ER-ERERNFERETREETS LIBOR! + 1.4% to 1.5% LBOR' +15%  —F-f%
2 HIBOR® + 1.4% to 1.5% g HIBOR® + 1.5%
Secured bank loans due for repayment within one LIBOR! +2.5% or LIBOR' +2.5%, 2019 33513
year which contain repayment on HIBOR® + 2% HIBOR® + 2% t0 2.5%,
demand clauses® or PRIME*- 2.25%
BR—ENEENFERRTER LIBOR! + 2.5% 3 LUBOR'+25%, — —E-hE
(BBREXERER)C HIBOR: + 2% HIBOR? + 2% % 2.5%,
o PRIME* - 2.25%
Secured bank loans due for repayment after one LIBOR' + 2.5% or 2020-2021 LIBOR" +2.5%, 2019-2021 28,998
year which contain repayment HIBOR® + 2% HIBOR® + 2%, or
on demand clauses® PRIME* - 2.25%
BR—FREENFERRTER LIBOR! + 2.5% 3 UBOR' +25%, —E-74%
(BBRERERER) HIBOR: + 2% HBOR +2%,8  —2=—
PRIME* - 2.25%
Secured bank loans due for repayment within PBCBLR® + 1.02% 23,165 PBC BLR® +0.91% 2019 63,207
one year’ 10 1.78%
BR—FNEENEERBIEN PBC BLR® +1.02% PBCBLRE+091%  —B-A%
£1.78%
Total #5F 178,539

Based on the scheduled repayment dates as set out in the loan ? HERERRESRITRE AT ERA Y
agreement/bank facilities letter

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR")

Standard Chartered Bank Prime Rate (“PRIME")

People’s Bank of China benchmark lending rate (“PBC BLR")
Denominated in HK$ or US$

Denominated in RMB

3 HBRITRIZESR S (THBOR])

4 BITIRITREEF = ([PRIME])

B PEIARRITEAEEERZE ([PBC BLR)
6 LA TS ZETTAIE

7 UART|E

N~ o v s oW

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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25.

—FAF+=A=t+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. FHEBITER @)
(continued)
Certain of the Group’s bank loan agreements contain REEE TRITER BRI A REKERIER -
repayment on demand clauses and the corresponding MEEEITERERNGEMBRRIARSEAER
bank loans have been classified as current liabilities in the BAE o WP REMZRERERERZTZER
consolidated statement of financial position. Ignoring the RIBEZEEROEERHR - A AT BRITE
effect of any repayment on demand clauses and based on TERTRER -
the maturity terms of these loans, the interest-bearing
bank borrowings of the Group are repayable:
2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 78,682 149,541
In the second year FE_F 5,554 22,724
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEZFERF (PEERMT) - 6,274
84,236 178,539

Notes:

Certain amount of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by (i)
the Group’s investment property with a carrying amount of
HK$6,473,000 (2018: HK$6,448,000) (note 14); and (ii) pledged
deposits with banks amounting to HK$31,232,000 (2018:
HK$30,967,000) (note 21).

At 31 December 2018, certain amount of the Group’s bank
borrowings were secured by (i) the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings and construction in progress with an aggregate net
carrying amount of HK$185,652,000 (note 13); and (i) the Group’s
parcels of leasehold land situated in Mainland China which were
classified as prepaid land lease payments with a carrying amount of
HK$4,840,000 (note 15).

Included in the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019 were
borrowings with carrying amounts of HK$23,165,000 (2018:
HK$63,207,000) and HK$56,188,000 (2018: HK$98,174,000)
which were denominated in RMB and US$, respectively. All other
bank borrowings were denominated in HK$.

At 31 December 2019, interest rates of the bank borrowings were
either fixed or floating and determined with reference to rates such
as Hong Kong/London Interbank Offered Rate and People’s Bank of
China benchmark lending rate. The interest rates of the Group’s
bank borrowings at 31 December 2019 ranged from 3.30% to
5.22%, (2018: from 3.00% to 6.09%) per annum.

R EE T IRITERE () A& B IR E{E 76,473,000
BT (ZZ—/)\F : 6,448,000/87T) (MIzE14) HILEY
¥ RG()BEIFFHRITOFN31,232,0008 (=%
— J\4F : 30,967,000 7T) (Mt 21) {3 -

RZF-N\F+ZA=+—R0 ' XEBEETFRITERS
FELA () A B 42 BR TEDEE /3 185,652,000 B TR MHE +
HREFARERTIZ(M5E13) ¢ R(i) RNEBAH
5 79 3 69 B T {673 4,840,000 /8 T Z IR & 1 # ( D
1AM T EFRIE) (B FE15) YEIK IR o

RZZ-—NAF+ZA=+—A8  RITERLEEDED
A1 /23,165,000 7t (= Z — )\ : 63,207,000 7T )
256,188,000 7T ( =% — J\ & : 98,174,000 7T ) #)
BR(DBIAARE RETFHE) - A EIRITER
LAPSTCEHE ©

RZF-AF+ZA=+—R  RIEFREEH T
FEFE - MED2ERE MRBRTRAERERTE
ARBRITEEBEN TR - RZFT-AF+ZA=+—
B AREERITERNFENENF3.30%E522% (=
T—/\F : 3.00% £6.09%) °

REKEEZERARAR
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26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES
The Group leases a motor vehicle for its operations. These
leases were classified as finance leases prior to HKFRS 16
becoming effective on 1 January 2019 and had remaining
lease term of two years. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and their present values
were as follows:

26. RiEHEENSFIE
AEBERERE  UHEEYH - REHER =
Z-NGE—A—BEBUBREENS 165 %
BADEAMERE S THEAME - AR
ENERETBREE AV ERKARS K
ST R (AR -

R-ZE-N\F+-_A=+—H @EHAEETX
RREEES M RERELEIRESRFINT

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
FEMEERK
SEBERNK WA
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHIT FATT
Amounts payable: FERTFIR -
Within one year —FR 460 436
In the second year E_F 460 449
In the third to fifth years, E=FZERF
inclusive (BHEEEMSF) 115 114
Total minimum finance SEMEHENRERE
lease payments 1,035 999
Future finance charges RIREEE R (36)
Total net finance BERERNFIBEFE
lease payables 4aza 999
Portion classified as NEARBAENE Y
current liabilities (436)
Non-current portion IERENEB 563
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27.
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during
the year are as follows:

iR AE B TH
EEHRBRABNEERNFANEESHIT

Deferred tax liabilities EERIESF
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
related Revaluation Withholding
depreciation of properties taxes Total
HEREGREA
BEATE ERrYE S EMH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FH&T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\EF
—H—H (8) (6,020) - (6,028)
Deferred tax charged to  RF AR B HIE

profit or loss during IR AE R 1E

the year (note 10) (M$3E10) (115) (964) (13,753) (14,832)
Exchange realignment [ 3,385 - 311 - 311
At 31 December 2018 R Z=ZZT—/)\F

and 1 January 2019 +ZA=F+—BXK

—E-hF
—H—H (123) (6,673) (13,753) (20,549)
Deferred tax credited/ ~ RERNIEZEET A

(charged) to profit or (0B B IR IEFH I8

loss during the year (fF5E10)

(note 10) 79 (728) (1,962) (2,611)
Exchange realignment  [& i F§ % - 162 - 162
At 31 December 2019 WR=-ZT—h %

+=—RA=+—H (44) (7,239) (15,715) (22,998)
RESEERBERATE
£4§ 2019 127



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR M AL

371 December 2019 —ZF—h&E+—-A=+—H

128

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. EEBIE (4)
Deferred tax assets BELEHEEE
Depreciation  Provision for Losses
Provision in excess inventories available Other
for accrued of related and trade  for offsetting deductible
staff welfare  depreciation and bills  against future temporary
costs allowance receivables taxable profits differences Total
FERES SRR
RHBIRN FERBH EgsER  EREER  EtTNE
RARE RERE EREEEG d i BRER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx TR TR
At 1 January 2018 WZB-NE-A-H 2,100 3,255 1,894 298 3,184 10,731
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ MERREZET A/ (188

profit or loss during the year R (3 10)

(note 10) 255 1,159 (61) 252 (111) 1,494
Exchange realignment B AR (107) (190) (80) - (142) (519)
At 31 December 2018 and WZ2-N\E+-A=+-H

1 January 2019 R=Z-hE-R-H 2,248 4,224 1753 550 2,931 11,706
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ RERRIBZET A/ (F18) ¢

profit or loss during the year ERERE (5 10)

(note 10) 331 (1,977) (147) (550) 16 (2,327)
Exchange realignment R AR (56) (56) (36) - (65) @13)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1+—H 2,523 2,191 1,570 - 2,882 9,166

At 31 December 2019, the Group had tax losses arising in
Hong Kong of HK$5,348,000 (2018: Nil) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of a
subsidiary in Hong Kong in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the tax losses as they have arisen in a subsidiary that have
been loss-making for some time and it is currently not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
Shares B 2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Authorised: SETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000 f% &% 0.01 B 7T
HK$0.01 each EOR=S LS 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHE
240,000,000 ordinary shares of 240,000,000 f% &% 0.01 87T
HK$0.01 each ORI 2,400

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The Scheme became
effective on 18 November 2014 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for ten years
from that date.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates, is required to be approved by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any grant
of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, is subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date as specified in the offer letter issued by the
Company, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Scheme is determined by the
board of directors in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has
been granted.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors at its absolute discretion, but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares on the date of grant.

29.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are
set out in the Company’s Report of the Directors.

No share options were granted during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 and no share options under the
Scheme were outstanding as at 31 December 2019 and

BT E ()
PR AR T A A MBS AR B RAE
R HER o

ARRBEBECZES
FERE -

ABERARRZE

BE_FT-NFR_FE-N\F+-_A=1+—H
LR - SIERDEAREE MR _F—NF
RZZB-N\Ft-A=1—8 Z8THERE

2018. PR 1 ARTTHEE
30. RESERVES 30. A&
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements RAFERENFE  ~AEBEREEREZS
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the T2V R IEREAE IR 64 BEMNGA TS
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 63 * o
and 64 of the financial statements.
Capital reserve EXRGFEE
The capital reserve represents the capital contribution from BERREEREESERRBEL T RBIRRRK
Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung by way of a REFGEITREE RS BT I 8 JEIE AR
waiver of shareholders’ loan and the difference between wIREE 2 A ERE -
the consideration and the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interest acquired.
31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31. R8BSR EXRMEE
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) METBELENEESH
activities
2019 —E-NF
Interest- Finance
bearing bank lease payables/
borrowings lease liabilities
MEEE
EfFRE
sFERITHER HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#E T
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-N\F+-_A=+—H 178,539 999
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 PN B A B TR R RS 1698
D 2,929
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZE—-NF—A—B(KE) 178,539 3,928
Changes from financing cash flows gt & IR &5 2 & (CEXEL)] (2,663)
New leases e = 1,326
Interest expense MERX 131
Interest paid classified as SEELERREMNFE
operating cash flows (131)
Derecognition BUBTER (401)
Foreign exchange movement EINER=E) =
At 31 December 2019 R-_E—-NE+=-A=+—8H
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

31. MERERERMT @)
(a) BETHELENEEEH (B

2018 —ZT-N\F
Interest-
bearing bank Finance
borrowings  lease payables
MEHEE
FHERITIER e 5RIR
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THETT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-NF—H—H 185,390 7,593
Changes from financing cash flows BMERERE (3,963) (6,538)
Foreign exchange movement N (2,888) (56)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H 178,539 999

(b) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

(b) HEARSR
MERRS RO ARSRERDT

2019
—2-NF
HK$’000
TERT

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

LETEENA 131
EhEEEA

2,663

2,794

(c) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$1,326,000 and HK$1,326,000, respectively in
respect of lease arrangements for certain properties.

(00 EXRFEREXRS
RER  AEBRETYENHEZHES
FREEELHEGENIERESARED R
£1,326,0007%8 7T % 1,326,000 78 7T °

REKEEZERARAR
372019
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32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEEH
Details of the Group’s bills payable and bank borrowings, BRAEEEMNERMEITER(ARERET
which are secured by certain assets of the Group, are BEERR) NS COREAGEBBHRE
included in note 23 and note 25, respectively, to the MiE23 RMIFE25 o
consolidated financial statements.
33. COMMITMENTS 33. &g
(a) the Group had the following capital commitments at () RM|EHR  AEEHUTEAREE
the end of the reporting period:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EEESEES:T -
Construction and purchases of BENEEDE - BEK
items of property, plant and RBEE
equipment 1,626
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 (b) R=ZEBE—-NE+ZB=+—HHELEE
December 2018 HEAE
The Group leased certain of its properties under REEBBRCEHERHHERE TWE -
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the YEMRELETE RBIME -
properties were negotiated for a term of two years.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future RZE-NF+ZA=+—H A"EER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BRI HHECEHERNOARRZERE
operating leases falling due as follows: NFREREOREERAT
2018
—TN\F
HK$'000
FAT
Within one year —%FR 1,776
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZERF(RREREMF) 1,280
3,056
1 32 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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=E=MET =A==

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and

3. EBARS

(a)

RESHBRELMHH FRORS - 7

balances detailed elsewhere in these financial HER GERAHN 7K & A AR N BB R T 5T T
statements, the Group had the following transactions THRE :
with a related party during the year:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
A related company: ) NEIIE
Rentals paid BEfEE — 1,656
Lease liabilities paid ENHEARE 1,776 -
1,776 1,656
Note: B 5
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the rentals were (i) HE-Z-)\G+_A=+—HILFE 2
charged by Yantek Electronics Company Limited (“Yantek”), ETARAA (AR KEEMRE AR - M@
a related company of the Group, owned as to 33% by Mr. BBHFEE  REARE(RERARRER)
Chan Yan Kwong and 34% by Mr. Chan Yan Wing, who &ﬂ%@\mgi(ﬂ%@d‘é%‘ﬁi&ﬁ?@g}/%iﬁ%@
are the directors of the Company, and 33% by Ms. Chan ﬁ*)’n‘%w}?ﬁﬁ?% . 34%4&33%$EE)$EB§ZK
Yan Sam, the sister of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and Mr. Chan EEERBETINEEREEES -
Yan Wing, in accordance with the tenancy agreements
entered into between the Group and Yantek.
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised the RRBEBMHREEAF 16501% - REER
leases with Yantek as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities —EAF-A-HARERRBRENEER
of HK$2,911,000 and HK$2,929,000 as at 1 January 2019, & B # é }?;_2,91],000;% TREE E_Fé V=]
respectively. Interest on lease liabilities of HK$111,000 and 2,929,000/ 7L « HE—F—JLEF—A=+—
depreciation of right-of-use assets of HK$1,691,000 were BILFE - BHERHEER®FE111,00087T
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019. RfEFA#AEYTE 1,691,000 47T
Other transaction with a related party (b) HMEREBAETHNRIS
A director of the Company received a sales FN - ARR—ZEEFEARALNEEIRHR
commission of HK$4,486,000 (2018: HK$6,598,000) T 1S 84 S A £ 4,486,000 L (= F
for his services provided to the Group during the —J\£ : 6,598,000 7T) + L IRER
year based on 3%-12% (2018: 3%-12%) of the 5 & EH3%-12%( = F — )\ F : 3%-—
transaction amounts. 12%) 55 -
Commitments with a related party () EEEBEER AR

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into four
two-year non-cancellable agreements with Yantek
to lease certain office properties and a director’s
quarter under operating lease arrangements.
The amount of rentals charged for the year is
included in note 34(a)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements. At 31 December 2018, the Group's total
future minimum lease payments to Yantek falling
due within one year and in the second to fifth
years, inclusive were approximately HK$1,776,000
and HK$1,280,000, respectively.

AEBEETFHBAREBEI S NDME
HART s - IR EHE L HEH
BAETHAEMEREERS - FAWE
2 & BRI NGE U RENE340)
e RZZE—NFE+-_A=+—0 &=
ESXNTREZ R REERASETE  B—
ERNIEHMAE-_EZFRFRN(BRER
M F) 25D R %) A1,776,000 7T K
1,280,000 7T ©

REKEEZERARAR
F 372019
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BHMARS (&)
(d) Compensation of key management d) Z=EEXTEEEASNHEE:
personnel of the Group:

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Short term employee benefits RHEERA 14,231 16,537
Post-employment benefits BB 12 B A 54 54

Total compensation paid to key ENETEEEABNHERSE

(e)

management personnel

14,285 16,591

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the amount due to a related company
are as follows:

Lease liabilities due to a related ENEBAREE
company (note) & & (M)
Note:

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and the effect of the initial adoption is adjusted against
the opening balances as at 1 January 2019 with no adjustments to
the comparative amounts as at 31 December 2018.

The related party transaction in respect of note 34(a)(i)
above also constitutes a continuing connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

134
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EERFETHRABFTMOEMFEHN
RAMIEHRES -

(e) MENREEEEARFIEFIBNT -

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
ZE-hE —B-hE —E-N\%F
+=ZA=+-H —A—H ek g=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T

2,190 2,929 -

BfaE

AEBETRANEBY B REERE 165 REAEUE
BWE  BRRMOTER T -NEF-A—-BNEFEY
HRMELRE  R-T-/\F+-A=t—-AnttEs
BWMETHE -

it Y 7 34(a)() Z BB 5 2 5 IR B A T AR Bl
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RERBINEMTA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHeMIANREHROEEABESRSIOT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets BMgERE
Financial assets at amortised cost: REER AT ENTHEE -
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R FIE K EWEE 216,446 255,704
Financial assets included in FTATERRIE - e RHEHAM
prepayments, deposits JEWFIER B 15 & B
and other receivables 624 714
Pledged deposits and restricted cash EERERRZREIRE 31,433 31,621
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBESZEEY 129,434 135,876
377,937 423,915
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEF AR IR
other comprehensive income: TS A EE -
Equity instruments designated at BEEREAFETAEMEE
fair value through other WasHiRET A
comprehensive income 4,159 4,119
382,096 428,034
Financial liabilities BEaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 1R SR AT BRI TS B 1
Trade and bills payables B S ENFIARENZE 109,492 124,973
Financial liabilities included in other FEARAL N RIB K BT B
payables and accruals W B EE 31,949 37,995
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHERITER 84,236 178,539
Finance lease payables B E SRR IE = 999
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,190 -
227,867 342,506
REKEERERAT
F3R 2019 1 3 5
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as

36. TRTANAFERAIFEER

AEESRTANKEERAFE(REERE
ANHERBEENERIARIN EHFIMT :

follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
AREE AFE
2019 2019
—E-hE —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FERT
Financial asset BgERE
Financial asset at fair value & AFEFHA
through other Hih 2 EWE
comprehensive income BB E B
Financial liabilities BMEaE
Finance lease payables A& E R RIE 999 1,035

Interest-bearing bank FHEIRITIER

borrowings

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted cash,
trade and bills receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the chief financial officer analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The directors review
the results of the fair value measurement of financial
instruments for annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

1 36 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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84,236 178,539 84,801 180,044

84,236 179,538 84,801 181,079

EEEDTE  ReLRSEEY SEAER
EERHIBRE BFREFARBERER 85
BN RIARENRE - SEATRNFUR - R R E
BRI B EE - F AR EN TR R E
FRERANMBAEN A TERERTERS X
ZRAAZETAREHANI YN AR RTZE
WAERK °

AEEVBREABERAFTER TARAFEFE
MBRERER - REREEH - KBRS TS
RIANEEEY YETHEMBHIZHA
HE - BEXRAFEVERERHERIARTE
FAEMER -
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 36. TRITANAFERATFERRE)

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings and finance lease payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using discount rates that reflect the Group’s
borrowing rates as at the end of the reporting period. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as
at the end of the reporting period was assessed to be
insignificant.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investment,
management of the Group has estimated the fair value of
the investment using an asset-based approach as its major
asset is a property held for self-use and the investee is yet
to have sufficient earning history to support the use of
other approaches. The value of this property is adjusted to
its fair value at the end of each reporting period for the
purpose of determining the Group’s share of adjusted net
asset value and fair value of the investment.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

FHRRITERENARY RENBRERAENA
FENFEDE  RARRASEREHE KA
ERF R MBER R RBHRRR S RE - AN
AEEA SR HERARI BRITERNTE
HEBHERN AT EZEETER/TERK -

HIEETBREREN A FE  AEEEEECDHE
REE[MBEGEARENATE AXEEER
—EFEERANENARREHRERBRD
BMREASIFEREMITE - ZMENEED
ABERSERERARZAFE  NEEAEE
EIERABREEFERRERE -

DFERR
TRITAEEEMTANATEFEER

Fair value measurement using

ERANTRABBNAFENE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
ERBME  EATUBERE BEATAEE
RME BAEE BAEE et
(Level 1) ((SVE W) (Level 3)
(EB—#4) (B=4) (B=%)
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FExT FET FET
Asset measured at BAFETE
fair value: MEE :
At 31 December 2019 RIZ—I&F
+=—A=+—H”
Financial asset at fair value &2AF(EET A
through other HAth 2 E U ES
comprehensive income MBI EE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—8H
Financial asset at fair value 1% AFEEHA
through other H A2 E RS
comprehensive income TS & B - - 4,119 4,119
REKEERERAT
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 36.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investee’s investment property would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment.

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

ERMTANAFERAFEER @

D EERE)
ERBREHRNREMEZ A FENHKIEE
/OB BB ETREREZ AFEKR
@i, ORd) -

RERFE=ZROAFEFEZSHIOT :

2019 2018
—E-hF —TN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Financial asset at fair value through BATEGS AREMEE
other comprehensive income/available- Wz BA G & & /Al
for-sale investment — unlisted: HE®RE — L :
At 1 January m—H—H 4,153
Fair value gains recognised in other FRE M 2 N AR HE SR Y
comprehensive income N ERE 163
Exchange realignment b X R (197)
At the end of year FR 4,119

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2018:
Nil).

1 38 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 36. TRITANAFERATFERRE)

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEBRE)

Fair value measurement using
FERAUATHASBENATERE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
HEWE EAUTERE EAFATERER
HE WA WAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—-%) (B=&) (B=4)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FHET

Liabilities for which fair HEAFEMNEE :
values are disclosed:

At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=—A=+—H
Interest-bearing bank s EERITIE K

borrowings

At 31 December 2018 R-ZT—N\F

+=-A=+—H
Finance lease payables BhE T E R IRIE - - 1,035 1,035
Interest-bearing bank STRSRITE
borrowings - - 180,044 180,044
- - 181,079 181,079
REKEERERAT
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES MBEREREBERBE

AND POLICIES
The Group’s principal financial instruments arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's cash and time deposits at banks and borrowings
with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on deposits with banks and floating
rate borrowings). There is no impact on the Group's equity
except on the retained profits.

FEEIZESRMTITAEERRNELE

AEESRTAEANTZ2ABRANERR - )
KRR FERREADESRR ZEFSEM
RRAZE $%@A@%lﬁﬁi%ﬁtﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂﬂl% e =
RN

EIES:
FEARDESHTANKIRS AR BED
55 2 T B LR, o SR B B 5 1
EHAKRTERAEENRTES RERER
ROFRIERAR -

TRIRAEEBRBADEN (RIRTHEREER
ERNFE)HMNEHR SR AL EE (KA
*ﬁ_‘*"%(i’ﬁ%Tm)E’J@ﬁlmﬁ o BRIRE AN - A
SERSHESZE

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
EEhwm BR%E AT A
GR4)  #m CGEd)
HK$°000
THET
2019 —E-hEF
HK$ BT
RMB AR
HK$ /%71:
RMB AR
2018 =F-N\F
HK$ AT 50 1
RMB AR 50 (73)
HK$ BT (50) (1
RMB AR (50) 73
Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Those
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
The Group’s main operating subsidiaries are located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China and the Group’s sales and
purchases were mainly conducted in HK$, RMB and US$.

The RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future
exchange rates of the RMB could vary significantly from
the current or historical exchange rates as a result of the
changes in the PRC foreign currency policy. The exchange
rates may also be affected by economic developments and
political changes domestically and internationally, and the
demand and supply of the RMB. The appreciation or
devaluation of RMB against HK$ and US$ may have impact
on the operating results of the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes
in the fair values of monetary assets and liabilities). There is
no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

BEERERE B ERBEK @)

SR B

AEEERRXZEERR - ZFRBRFENSEE
AR BN NN EE AN ERETESR - &
SENTELEMBRRAMUNEERPEAM
MAEENEETENET ARBRETE
e

ARBAIFE B BMERE - ARBEAARIRERA]
BEE AT B SMNEB K B B B AR EE X
BRAEA o ERIRAI8E X B ASME A3 R R IK
RBBURARBNERATE - ARBLET
RETHESRESSHARE CKEXEE
REE -

TRIRRHMEMARAEBGRH TGN (REH
BERABEAFENES) WARBEXTHRE
BRI (R BB TE)NHRE -
BRRBEEAIN . AREERSREZTE -

profits.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
RMB rate before tax
ARMESR FR®E AR A
EFH(FER) i/ (GRS
% HK$°000
F#E T
2019 —EB-NEF
If HK$ weakens against RMB i ARBE T %
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT AR EFA
If US$ weakens against RMB WMETHARE T K
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETLARE L7
2018 —E-N\F
If HK$ weakens against RMB W TRARE T 5 3)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT H ARE EF (5) 3
If US$ weakens against RMB WMETHLARE T 5 (602)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETHARE EFH (5) 602
RESEERBERATE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BIEREEEEREBEE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk EERg

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BERBRFEREER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TREM+T-A=+—0 ERAEEEER
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, ROEEEENABRYREER(EEERBE
which is mainly based on past due information unless FEER - IRIFE HMEBAEEE TV ERASIE
other information is available without undue cost or effort, DA RER) RERBESE - 2VMLEAR
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The M EENRELE -

amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-AE+ZA=+—8

Lifetime ECLs

EHEBEEFR

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 approach

PR PEER2 PEER3 N9z
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$’000
TER TR TR FiEr TER

Trade receivables* g 5 e R * - = 197,743 197,743
Bills receivable [EW &

— Not yet past due — Ko 22,260 22,260
Financial assets included in SPARNFUE - e

prepayments, deposits and R H At MR B )

other receivables M EE

— Normal** — IEHE**
Pledged deposits and BEAERR

restricted cash ZIRHIR e

— Not yet past due — R HA 31,433 31,433
Cash and cash equivalents RekBR2EEY

— Not yet past due — K@ 129,434 129,434

183,751 197,743 381,494
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

At 31 December 2018

BEEREERERBE®)

FERRE(E)
REERRFERER(E)

nR-—ZE—-N\E+=ZHA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
a8
=EEE 2HEHEREER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
PEER 1 PEER 2 PEER 3 fBx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTAT TAT FTAET FHET
Trade receivables* =Y AVERER - - - 222,699 222,699
Bills receivable EWZE 36,844 - - - 36,844
— Not yet past due — K H
Financial assets included in AR ke
prepayments, deposits and N EoA e WUFRIE B
other receivables MBEE
— Normal** — EF** 714 - - - 714
Pledged deposits and BEBERR
restricted cash 2R HIR &
— Not yet past due — R Hp 31,621 - - - 31,621
Cash and cash equivalents RekEEED
— Not yet past due — K@ H 135,876 - - - 135,876
205,055 - - 222,699 427,754
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * HAEBEERSCEERENE SEKZRIERS - B8

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Ty ER B IS MR MTAT 19 PR ER MV BB B R -

** HEF ATRNFOR » e R H A RUGRIBR M & EA R
B AMEENBETZENBEAENEERR B MnE
RUAREEE N - AR EREEWREIER] - TR
ZENBEAENEEERRRAE T -

REKEEZERARAR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BiiREEREEHERBER (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise trade and bills receivables, pledged deposits and
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 48.4%
(2018: 46.6%) and 69.7% (2018: 68.4%) of the Group's
trade and bills receivables were due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. The Group’s policies are to regularly
monitor the current and expected liquidity requirements,
and to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and available banking facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in short and longer terms.

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2019 —E-NE
Trade and bills payables B IRNFERENER
Financial liabilities included in

other payables and accruals

AR E

ATARMEN AR ETER

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t B R1T{E K
Lease liabilities HEBE
144 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019

FERR(E)
AEBEMBEE(BRESRUFBEREBKRE
B BEERAEREZRHRE R RBSFE
VIEIIATBNFOR « e REAME WA 5
BEE)NEERBRRREF IR  ARRIRE
EERZETAMNERE -

BREF /HFHEEREEEPREAR - RREH
K AEFEEAETEEETERR  HAKNEBEE
WE SR FBRERZES - D 5E48.4%
(ZZE—N\F 1 466%) %69.7% (=T — N\F:
68.4% ) B AEBZ AR AKRNEF ©

B SRR

AEBEMBBEANMARITEREFESNFE
MEEREE M 2 T - ARBOBRAENERST
BREMRBHESTE R  UEREESZHERED
EERATARITRE - WhRRBRRBERDE

AEBERREHRRIEA QO RBRRA RO
BEIEMKRET

On  Less than 1to5
demand 1 year years
BREREE IR-F —FIF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TEr

109,492 109,492
31,949 31,949

25,415 59,386 84,801
- 1,686 2,266

25,415 202,513 228,508
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. M¥EMEEEEREE (@)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REVRE R ()
On Less than 1t05
demand 1 year years Total
REREER PR—F —ERF 4B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
2018 —E-N\F
Trade and bills payables ZHRENFAERENER = 124,973 = 124,973
Financial liabilities included in other =t A E i fE{ /I8 [ fEA+ &
payables and accruals METEaE = 37,995 = 37,995
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t EIRITIER 62,511 117,533 - 180,044
Finance lease payables BMEHERMNFIEA - 460 575 1,035
62,511 280,961 575 344,047
Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are term AERITERPRREHER  HER BT

loans of which the loan agreements contain a repayment
on-demand clause giving the banks the unconditional right
to call in the loans at any time and therefore, for the
purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount is
classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not
believe that the loans will be called in their entirety within
12 months, and they consider that the loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval
of the financial statements; the lack of events of default,
and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the
terms of the loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause, the maturity profile of those loans as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause, is as follows:

RAREIER 2GR BT RITEGIERNR
PMEAIR REEUWESK - B - 3h_ Bl 2 8RR m
5 ZERNEBOBRRREREER] -

HARBALIGR  EFATEEZERSRER
RT—EAREHREE MEFRRRZERSGR
ERipEME B S B EE - IR 2 EEE
R AEERMBHRRELES B 2P B
N WEENEMN  RAKBE LR —BERRERE
RIKEFE - RIFEIFAREBFESGHZER
MR B TRARERERRR 2T E  RIE
BERTARBBANR  ZFEFRRBEHRE 22
HERWT

Less than
1year 1to5 years Total
DPR—F —ZREF #st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT F#&x F#&xT
At 31 December 2019 R-EBE—-—NF+=-_A=+—8H 20,637 5,647 26,284
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\FE+=—_A=+—8H 35,764 29,976 65,740
REKEERERAT
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37.

38.

146

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or
raise new capital from its investors. The Group is required
to comply with certain externally imposed capital
requirements set out in certain of its bank loan
agreements/bank facility letters. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt includes
interest-bearing bank borrowings and finance lease
payables.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

MEERE

BEARER
AEBEBREANEZEMARBAEERSET
BECEREE N WRABROEARLE  UXF
B RFRHRAREEE -

BEEERBEK®)

6% B A PR AR OB IR R B B T IR B AN R I A
HFE - RERRFREARRE - AEE AL
BN TERROKEXRAREEEENES - A
E/RESE TRITESRRE RITBE SRR
FIHE TGN ERRE - REE-F—N
F+ZA=Z+—RARZT—NF+ZA=+—
RIEEE  EBEANER BRIBEFHESE
) o

AREFREEBGL R (AEGEHERIAEEZ)
EBER - EKBETERITERLRERE
JEfTRUER ©

RBmERRZEEBBLEHINOT

2019 2018

—E-hF Z—\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITER 84,236 178,539
Finance lease payables BB E RN FHIE = 999
Total debt 1BIETS 84,236 179,538
Total equity BRER 534,852 511,653
Gearing ratio BEABHE 0.2 0.4

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) outbreak in early
2020, which has spread across China with worldwide
infection, has caused material impact on a wide range of
economic activities. The operation of PCB manufacturers is
unavoidably affected, and the seriousness of the negative
impact will depend on the development of the epidemic. It
is anticipated that the above epidemic situation would
have certain negative impact on the production and sales
of the Group in early 2020. Meanwhile, management will
continue to assess the impact on the Group’s operation
and financial performance and closely monitor the Group’s
exposure to the risks and uncertainties in connection with
the epidemic.
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39. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 39. KREH
As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial SANET ISR 2.2 E — e - AEERZ
statements, the Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 January T-NF—-A—BHEAKEITNEBHERANE
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under BB EENE 1658 « RBFUL T E - HBEW
this approach, the comparative amounts in the financial RPN ERESEW AR TEY - Me@BEREBE
statements were not restated and continued to be BZERI (BN BB g 2RI E 17 5% RABARIE) 1
reported under the requirements of the previous standard, REEITEM -

HKAS 17, and related interpretations.

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. AATHBEMRRE
THE COMPANY o - o
Information about the statement of financial position of REIBERRRRRHBERAROERT
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000
FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—FEMBRARMIEE 1
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries A ENCIE ] 70,648 66,518
Prepayments FERTRIE 428 266
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREeEEY 371 274
Total current assets MEBEERE VARLY) 67,058
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals E T IR R IERT B A 1,052 1,432
Due to a subsidiary FEAST — AT B A RI5RIE 3,048 9,966
Total current liabilities mEE B 4,100 11,398
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 67,347 55,660
Net assets BEEE 67,348 55,661
EQUITY R
Issued capital B TR A 2,400 2,400
Reserves (note) () 64,948 53,261
Total equity HarE s 67,348 55,661
REKEERERAT
352019 1 47
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. AATEBFEMRRE (E)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: Bfex -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RRRIEHERENT -
Share Retained profits/
premium accumulated
account losses Total
REEA
B RER E5y st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAxT FHET FHET
At 1 January 2018 R-Z—N\F¥—HA—R 62,609 (5,084) 57,525
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRFBEREEEIBERE
for the year - (4,264) (4,264)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZE—N\F+_A=1+—8~K
—E-NF—A—H 62,609 (9,348) 53,261
Profit and total comprehensive income F AR R 2R A BT
for the year - 26,087 26,087
2018 final dividend —E-N\FEREBEKE - (14,400) (14,400)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-hF+=ZA=+—H 62,609 2,339 64,948
41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. #tEMBEHR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2020.
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